

COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
Michael P. West, County Superintendent of Schools 


345 5th Street, Suite A, Colusa CA  95932  ♦  www.ccoe.net 
mwest@ccoe.net  ♦  p 530.458.0350  ♦  f 530.458.8054 


   


COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
REGULAR MEETING 


DATE:  Wednesday, August 9, 2023 


TIME:  4:00 pm  Board Business Meeting 


PLACE:  345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room 


NOTICES:  The Colusa County Office of Education encourages those with disabilities to participate fully in the public 


meeting process. If you have a special need in order to allow you to attend or participate in our public 
meetings, contact the Superintendent’s Office at 530.458.0350 well in advance of the meeting that you 
wish to attend so that we may make every reasonable effort to accommodate you (Cal. Gov’t. Code, § 
54954.2, subd. (a)(1)). 


  The agenda packet and supporting materials can be viewed at the Colusa County Office of Education 
located  at  345  5th  Street,  Colusa,  CA,  or  online  at  ccoe.net.  For  more  information,  please  call 
530.458.0350. 


  This meeting will be recorded. 


   


A G E N D A 


        DECISION 
1.0 CALL TO ORDER 


1.1 Pledge of Allegiance 


2.0 ORDERING OF AGENDA 


3.0 STAFF QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 


4.0 LETTERS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
4.1 Awarding of Diplomas – Colusa County Adult School  information 


5.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items not on the agenda 


6.0 YUBA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT UPDATE 
  Douglas M. Harris, MSW, Trustee Area 7 


7.0 REPORTS FROM SUPERINTENDENT AND STAFF 
Note:  Bold indicates oral report 


7.1 Superintendent’s Reports  information 
7.1.1 Superintendent's Monthly Report 
7.1.2 Superintendents Council – July Meeting 


7.2 Administrative Services – Aaron Heinz  information 


7.3 Student Services – Chuck Wayman  information 


7.4 Technology Services – Alex Evans  information 







Colusa County Board of Education 
August 9, 2023, Agenda 
Page 2 


DECISION 
8.0 BOARD QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 


8.1 Board President’s Report  information 


9.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items on the agenda 


10.0 CONSENT AGENDA 
(All items are approved by one motion unless pulled by a Board member for separate discussion or action.) 
10.1 Approve Minutes of the June 20, 2023, Public Hearing  action 


10.2 Approve Minutes of the June 21, 2023, Regular Board Meeting  action 


10.3 Approve Minutes of the July 12, 2023, Regular Board Meeting  action 


10.4 Second Reading:  Board Policy Revision  action 
OP 3013 Opting Out of Stipend and/or Mileage 
Reimbursement Payments 


11.0 OLD BUSINESS 
11.1 Community College District Territory (standing item)  information 


11.2 Facilities Update (standing item)  information 


11.3 LCAP Update (standing item)  information 


11.4 Universal Prekindergarten (standing item)  information 


12.0 NEW BUSINESS 
12.1 First Reading:  Board Policy Revision  information 


12.1.1 BP 9100 Organization 
12.1.2 BP 9122 Ex Officio Secretary and Executive Officer 
12.1.3 BP 9320 Meetings and Notices 
12.1.4 BP 9322 Agenda/Meeting Materials 


12.2 Approve CSBA Dues    action 


13.0 ADVANCED PLANNING 
13.1 Items to be Considered for the Next Board Meeting 


13.2 Next Regular Board Meeting  information 
Instructional Materials for 2023‐2024 
September 13, 2023, 4:00 p.m. 
345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room 


14.0 ADJOURNMENT 







Douglas Harris – Area 7 
Mr. Harris represents Trustee Area 7 consisting of Lake County 
(Konocti and Middletown Unified School Districts), Colusa 
County (Maxwell, Princeton, and Williams Unified School 
Districts), Glen County (Stony Creek Joint Unified School District) 
and a portion of Sutter County.  He has lived in the Yuba 
Community College District of Lake County for 48 years.  During 
that time he has raised children, worked, recreated, and 
volunteered extensively in Lake County. 


Mr. Harris graduated from River Falls High School in River Falls, 
Wisconsin and earned a bachelor’s degree from University of 
Wisconsin-River Falls.  He has a Master’s of Social Work from San 
Francisco State University.  Much of his professional career has 
been in advocacy for low income people, seniors, and those with 
disabilities.  His experience also includes district administrator of 
a foster family agency, director of the Lake/Mendocino Counties 
Area Agency on Aging, and psychiatric social worker in a partial 
hospitalization program. 


For twenty-two years Mr. Harris taught Human Services and Sociology at the Lake Campus of 
Woodland Community College.  He is committed to access to quality higher education, career and 
technical education, and life-long learning in remote areas of the Yuba Community College District 
and welcomes your concerns and suggestions. 


Mr. Harris was first provisionally appointed to the YCCD Board of Trustees in early 2022 and was 
elected in November 2022. His current term expires in 2024. 


Email Trustee Harris dharris@yccd.edu 


6.0



mailto:dharris@yccd.edu





COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
Michael P. West, County Superintendent of Schools 


345 5th Street, Suite A, Colusa CA  95932 
mwest@ccoe.net    p 530.458.0350    f 530.458.8054 


Page 1 of 1 


ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES REPORT 


AUGUST 2023 


Business Services 


 Working on closing 2022‐23 fiscal year books


 Continued work with our auditors on the fiscal year 2022‐23 audit


Human Resources 


 Planning 2023‐24 Job Fairs


Communications & Public Relations 


 Conducted outreach at the Colusa Certified Farmer’s Market on June 22 and the Arbuckle
Watermelon Festival on July 29


 Attended the “Recharge & Reset” Communications training on June 21 with the
Capitol/Foothills Region of CalSPRA (California School Public Relations Association)


 Highlighting CCOE employees and family members who graduated this year on the CCOE
website and social media pages throughout the month of June


 Creating HR videos highlighting employees from different departments, what they do each
day, and why they like working at CCOE.  To be distributed throughout the new fiscal year


 Working with Educational Services to prepare for Attendance Awareness media campaign
set to begin in August


 Updating the website for the new fiscal year


 Implemented Welcome Back Day on August 1


 Distributed August newsletter on August 2


 Participated in outreach with “And Literacy For All” on August 7 at Ampla Medical & Dental
in Colusa


And Literacy For All 


 Continued work with the Migrant Camp


 Game planning to expand services in 2023‐24


7.2







STUDENT SERVICES REPORT


August 2023 


Educational Services 


LCAP  


The district LCAPs have been adopted by their boards. I am reviewing. The SWAA LCAP is being 


reviewed by the state. 


Department Updates 


S. William Abel Academy (SWAA)


• Meetings have been scheduled for parents/guardians and students for the week of 7/31-8/4. As of
right now there are 18 students who have responded to continuing their education through
SWAA.


Colusa County Adult School 


• Some students are finishing up credits, but most adult education is on summer break.


• The CNA course started on July 3rd with 8 students enrolled.  Graduation for the program will be


held on August 11th.


• We are in the process of hiring a full-time Navigator and have started the interview process.  We


have also posted an opening for another ESL teacher


Farm to School 


• CCOE hired Elizabeth Herzog as our Farm to School director. Elizabeth has been busy building
her schedule and visiting school sites.


Comprehensive Support and Improvement (CSI) 


• No information at this time.


Curriculum, Instruction, and Accountability (CIA) 


• Needs assessment surveys have been sent to the four superintendents and site principals to help
provide information on how CCOE can best support their staff. Once surveys are completed the
data collected will provide information as to the training that will be most beneficial to the districts.


School Attendance Review Board (SARB) 


• Using a multi-agency collaborative and comprehensive approach, Colusa County SARB will assist


students and families in identifying and working through barriers, in order to return to school


and reduce chronic absenteeism.


Prevention Services 


• TUPE -Non-punitive education for vaping can include marijuana usage. Beatriz attended the
Stanford Cannabis and Tobacco Awareness Conference in order to gather information and
materials. Prevention Services will present the program to Chuck and Mike in August. Tier 1 grant


7.3







renewed this year. CCOE will support districts with the California Healthy Kids Survey as in the 
past. 


• Homeless Foster – Reaching out for new members for the Foster Executive Advisory Committee 


due to terms ending last year. All Foster Liaisons are returning except for WUSD. Trainings set 


for staff and families. 


• CalHOPE – New data system will be available for the 2023-2024 school year. CCOE was able to 


offer graduate level Social Emotional class through UC Berkeley for 4 teachers. 


• Early Mental Health Initiative – 2nd Step – CCOE is prepared to continue supporting this grant 


from Bx Health. Bx Health submitted a new 3-year plan in accordance with the Mental Health 


Services Act (MHSA) that continues to fund this program.  


• BEST – Behavioral Health has a Rehab Specialist assigned to each district and staff are ready to 


resume services. 


Children’s Services 


• Continue preparation for the opening of the Colusa Early Learning Center.  Moved CPLC A to the 


vacant building at 728 5th Street in Colusa.   


• Parent Orientations are scheduled for August. 


• In-Service trainings scheduled and included collaborating with Marysville Joint Unified Child 


Development department to provide two-day training for teachers on Conscious Discipline 


strategies.  


•  Professional Development annual training plan complete. 


• Working on playground improvement at Colusa Preschool Learning Center B. 


• Reviewing camera and security options for sites with the CCOE IT Department. 


• Review and renew contracts as needed. 


• Attended CAPPA, Head Start, CDE, and UPK mixed delivery system virtual monthly meetings. 


•  Children’s Services Staffing Updates:   


o 11 - Associate Teacher positions vacant 


o 2 - Teacher positions vacant 


o 1 - Local Child Care Planning Coordinator vacant 


o Program Services Assistant Positions 2 & 4 vacant 


o Home Based Educator Hired                          


Family and Community Services 


o Scheduled Teaching Pyramid for Parents to support positive connections with young children.  


Session #1: Making a Connection, Section #2: Play and Positive Interactions, Section #3: 


Reflecting and Reframing.   


o  Learning Genie Family Engagement is currently at 79%.  


o Currently there are 45 in-home licensed childcare providers in Colusa County. Efforts to recruit 


childcare providers are ongoing.    


o The Provider Appreciation Luncheon on June 10th, 2024 was a huge success with nearly 80 


participants in attendance. 


o Preparing an annual Recruitment Calendar of Events to increase community awareness and 


collaboration.   


o Preparing dates to host Parent Café Parent trainings, scheduled to host 3 trainings by December 


2023. 







o Participating on the restructuring committee for the California Alternative Payment Program 


Association (CAPPA) to identify a new mission and restructure their vision. 


Education Services 


o Part-Day preschool classrooms begin mid-August (follow different start dates depending upon 


number of days funded). 


Universal Prekindergarten  


o Support the Early Educator Teacher Development Grant (EETDG) through Consortia with Placer 


County Office of Education meetings. 


o Attending quarterly UPK Task Force Advisory Group meetings. 


o Received the Universal Prekindergarten Mixed Delivery Planning Grant in July 2023.  


 


Special Education/SELPA 


• Special Education Staffing Updates 


Updated Positions for 2023-2024 School Year 


Position Class Progress 


Speech and Language Pathologist (Burchfield) Certificated Open 


Speech and Language Pathologist (Preschool) Certificated Filled 


Speech and Language Pathologist (Williams USD) Certificated Filled 


School Psychologist (Itinerant) Certificated Filled 


School Psychologist (Itinerant) Certificated Filled 


School Psychologist (Itinerant) Certificated Open 


Teacher – Extensive Support Needs (Egling) Certificated Open 


Teacher – Extensive Support Needs (Burchfield) Certificated Filled 


Teacher – Extensive Support Needs (Arbuckle 
Elementary) 


Certificated Filled 


Teacher – Mild to Moderate Support Needs (Johnson 
Junior High) 


Certificated Open 


Teacher – Extensive Support Needs (Williams 
Elementary School) 


Certificated Filled 


Teacher – Mild to Moderate Support Needs – Maxwell 
Elementary/Middle School 


Certificated Open 


Behavior Technician Classified Filled 


Paraeducators – multiple positions Classified Open 


Transportation Assistants – 2 openings Classified Open 


▪  


• Special Education Updates 


o Extended School Year completed 







o IEP Implementation 


▪ All data analyzed and submitted to CDE for all districts and CCOE by June 30th 


due date 


o Small LEA Cyclical Monitoring for Maxwell Unified 


▪ Completed 


o Compliance and Improvement Monitoring 


▪ All trainings completed by SELPA 


▪ Update on completion of activities for Cycle 1 


▪ Cycle 2 training begins August 8th  


 CIM Team 
Creating 


Data Drill 
Down 


Student 
Record 
Review 


Policy and 
Procedure 
Review 


Parent 
Survey 


Consolida
tion 


Colusa COE 
Disproportio
nate 


Complete Complete Complete Complete n/a Complete 


Colusa USD 
Targeted 
Level 3 


Complete Complete Complete Complete Complete Complete 


Pierce USD 
Targeted 
Level 2 


Complete Complete Complete Complete n/a Complete 


Williams USD 
Targeted 
Level 2 


Complete Complete Complete Complete n/a Complete 


• SELPA 


o CCOE SELPA (meeting updates) 


▪ Local Plan Parts B, D, E, and attachments approved by SELPA council and 


submitted to CDE for review  


o State SELPA 


▪ Next meetings are in September  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







7.4


Colusa County Office of Education  


Technology Services 


Board Report August 9, 2023 


Our CCOE Technology Specialist James Cunningham has accepted the Technology 
Coordinator position with Maxwell Unified School District on 7/24/23.  We want to 
congratulate him on his promotion and wish him well with his future endeavors.  We are 
currently recruiting for a CCOE Technology Specialist II position on Edjoin.   


Alex is also assisting with the transition of the two new Directors of Technology at 
CUSD and WUSD.  Alex is helping to bridge the gap during this shuffle of the CEWAN 
staff and maintain continuity of the summer projects. 


We are working with PJUSD to relocate their datacenter in July from the PJUSD District 
Office to the PJUSD Technology Center.  Frontier has been unable to keep its deadline 
commitments and we have had to push this project further into the future to create a 
maintenance window where school is out of session and Frontier is working.  We are 
estimated to push this out until December. 


We are continuing to plan for the eventual move of the CCOE datacenter from the 
library building to the Education Village.  This will allow for a more centralized network, 
the potential to create our own standalone network that would be isolated from Frontier, 
as well as generator options. We are coordinating around the existing Frontier contracts 
for each district with any erate limitations.  We plan for a master cutover sometime in 
July of 2024.  We are working with CENIC and the K12 High Speed Network to 
coordinate their installation at the CCOE Education Village.  We are also working with 
the County of Colusa to transition the connection that we currently supply to the library 
over to the County as part of that project.  The coordination of the state, county and 
phone contracts is continuing.  The Education Village Fiber network will be upgraded 
from 1G to 10G as part of the project.  The construction of our portables is continuing at 
present, and we are ordering equipment to have on hand for the eventual installation. 


We have purchased CAMSA Microsoft Licensing that will allow us a path to keep our 
automation software.  These licenses will provide us with new features.  We have 
started the process of setting up new Office 365 mail features from these licenses.  We 
are also working setting up Microsoft InTune which will replace the current SCCM 
software for automation.   


We are working Business Services on a plan to completely migrate legacy QCC data 
away from their server. 


We are looking at support options for the Village’s paging system as well as 
modernization for the Village Extron system in the classrooms to hook up the projectors. 







COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
Minutes of Public Hearing – June 20, 2023 


Acronyms Used in This Document May Be Found in Attachment A 


Board Members Present:  Ed Conrado, Cristy Edwards, Madison Martin, Brenda Miller, and 
Serena Morrow 


Staff/Visitors Present:  Angelina Guizar, Aaron Heinz, John Ithurburn, Tina Maxwell, 
Chuck Wayman, and Michael West 


President Madison Martin called the Public Hearing on the 2023‐24 Local Control Accountability 
Plan and Proposed 2023‐24 CCOE Budget to order at 4:00 p.m. in the 345 5th Street, Colusa, 
Large Conference Room and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 


Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services John Ithurburn reported on the 2023‐24 LCAP 
for S. William Able Academy. He reviewed increased or improved services for foster youth, 
English learners, and low‐income students and the carryover amount of $187,874.  John 
reported on spending changes including less spending on curriculum, ELD strategies, CTE and 
college readiness, course offerings, facilities, MTSS, transportation, student meals, parent 
engagement, student incentives, SEL, and an instructional assistant; and more spending on 
Summer School Academy to add a paraeducator for the classroom. Discussion was held on 
rolling over monies not spent ($221,882) to a pool of all budget items in 2023‐24.  He went on 
to review anticipated 2023‐24 expenditures for personnel, assessment, curriculum, professional 
development, CTE and college readiness, counselor services, a data coordinator, transportation, 
parent engagement, student incentives, SEL, and an instructional assistant.  Anticipated 
expenditures are $243,275, which John said may be less depending upon program needs.  
Discussion was held on CTE and college readiness delivery, which will be a hybrid of staff‐aided 
and self‐driven and then augmented by the Adult Education Navigator.  John reviewed the 
following goals: 


1. S. William Abel Academy will raise the achievement of all students through rigorous,
relevant curriculum and instruction and will be measured through formative and
summative assessments.


2. Provide an instructional program that prepares students for college and career
readiness.


3. Develop and implement a multi‐tiered system of support in collaboration with parents
and partner agencies that improves social emotional health and student engagement.


John spoke about parent engagement, which he said was fairly successful last year.  He said 
that parents’ concern centered more on how their child was doing and less on the program. 
Discussion was held on reflections, which were written by Lorilee Niesen and that John minorly 
edited, and on projected enrollment that John believes will increase.  Deputy Superintendent of 
Administrative Services Aaron Heinz highlighted a revision on page one that will decrease the 


10.1 







Colusa County Board of Education 
June 20, 2023, Public Hearing 
Page 2 


 


total LCFF funds from 28% to 27%.  Discussion was held on funding based upon ADA, on 
graduating students successfully transitioning to their place in society that John hopes to be 
able to track in the future, the number of staff being a positive impact on students, students 
having access to Special Education counseling staff, and on the lower absenteeism rate. 


Director of Business Services Angelina Guizar reviewed the 2023‐24 Budget, beginning with 
general fund financial assumptions; federal, state, and local revenue; and expenditures that 
include salaries and benefits, books and supplies, services and other operating expenses, 
equipment ‐  capital outlay, and other outgo indirect costs and debt payments.  Discussion was 
held on services and other operating expenses increases. Angelina continued with a review of 
Form 01 County School Service Fund Unrestricted and Restricted Expenditures by Object, 
County School Service Multiyear Projection Unrestricted/Restricted, and revising the final note 
at the bottom of the description of the Foundation for Private Purpose Trust Fund 73 to read 
“This fund is used for scholarships for the CCOE Agriculture Educational Foundation, as well as 
other County Board approved scholarships.” Discussion was held on Children’s Services’ budget 
in light of declining enrollment due to district‐run UPK programs.  The program will be 
maintained by keeping ADA stable through opening a new classroom, on requirements for 
infant toddler vs. preschool classrooms, on having the open mindedness to do business 
differently, on the inflexibility of Children’s Services funding, on reallocating staff not adding 
staff for the additional classroom, and on hiring fairs helping with staffing and providing a 
positive image to the community.  Regarding page 12 of the budget, tangible examples were 
requested for the statement “The County Office is making a concerted effort to reduce 
organizational costs to better prepare for lean economic times, all revolving around the belief 
that the students we help educate today are our future tomorrow.”  Among measures provided 
were keeping existing supplies and assets rather than replacing with new, leveraging equipment 
contracts to minimize costs, continuing the emphasis of going paperless, paying attention to 
the costs vs. benefits of conferences, researching the most cost‐effective options for purchases, 
and investing in facilities to reduce lease costs.  Discussion was also held on the State’s budget 
effect on CCOE’s budget, which was developed based upon the document that was sent to the 
Governor to sign.  Aaron said that even with the current projected deficit, which is likely to 
change once revenues are fully understood after the October 15 deadline to file taxes, the state 
continues to fund education well. 


No public was present to comment on or ask questions about the 2023‐24 Local Control 
Accountability Plan and/or the Proposed 2023‐24 CCOE Budget. 


The Public Hearing closed at 5:15 p.m.   


Adopted and Entered 


   
Michael P. West, County Superintendent and Secretary, 
Colusa County Board of Education







  Attachment A 


ACRONYMS 
 


ADA  Average Daily Attendance 


CCOE  Colusa County Office of Education 


CTE  Career Technical Education 


ELD  English Language Development 


LCAP  Local Control and Accountability Plan 


LCFF  Local Control Funding Formula 


MTSS  Multi‐Tiered System of Supports 


SEL  Social and Emotional Learning 


UPK  Universal Prekindergarten 


 







COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
Minutes of Regular Meeting June 21, 2023 


Acronyms Used in This Document May Be Found in Attachment A 


Board Members Present:  Ed Conrado, Cristy Edwards, Madison Martin, and Serena Morrow 


Staff/Visitors Present:  Emily Abken, Keri Cunha, Angelina Guizar, Jessica Haney, Aaron Heinz, 
Timothy Hurtado, John Ithurburn, Tina Maxwell, Sabrina Myers, Erik 
Ramirez, and Michael West 


1.0 CALL TO ORDER 
1.1 Pledge of Allegiance 


President Madison Martin called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m. in the 345 5th 
Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 


2.0 ORDERING OF AGENDA 
No changes. 


3.0 STAFF QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 
No questions or comments. 


4.0 LETTERS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
4.1 Awarding of Diplomas – Colusa County Adult School 


John Ithurburn reported on two recent graduates from the Colusa County Adult 
School and the S. William Abel Academy.  John introduced the two graduates in 
attendance one at a time, presented them with diplomas, and they were asked 
to share with the Board their future plans and to introduce their guests if 
present. 


4.2 CCBE Region 4 Update – Dr. David Patterson 
CCBE Region 4 County Representative Dr. David Patterson sent a letter to the 
Colusa County Board of Education that provided an update on CCBE and CSBA 
activities. 


5.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items not on the agenda 
No public input. 


6.0 REPORTS FROM SUPERINTENDENT AND STAFF 
6.1 Superintendent’s Reports 


6.1.1 Superintendent’s Monthly Report 
Michael West reported on his participation and attendance in activities, 
such as the ongoing process of developing a SARB that CCOE’s Director of 
Student Support and Outreach Jennifer Wayman is deftly spearheading, 
continued celebrating excellence within CCOE by recognizing Facilities 
Director Jared Robinette, and attended a review of the Governor’s May 
Budget Revision that:  


10.2 







Colusa County Board of Education 
June 21, 2023, Regular Meeting 
Page 2 


Approves the following proposals made by the Administration 


 Approves increases to the Local Control Funding Formula that were 
included in the 2022‐23 Budget. 


 Approves the 8.22% cost‐of‐living adjustment for the Local Control 
Funding Formula and affected categorical programs.  


 Fully funds the current year costs and budget year costs of universal 
school meals. 


 Approves $80 million ongoing Proposition 98 General Fund for county 
offices of education that operate county juvenile court and 
community schools.  


 Approves $20 million for the Bilingual Teacher Professional 
Development Grants. 


 Approves $5.8 million for 50% increase to county office of education 
differentiated assistance base grant. 


Amends the following proposals made by the Administration 


 Significantly restores the proposed reduction to the Arts, Music, and 
Instructional Materials Discretionary Block Grant, so that the total 
proposed $1.8 billion reduction is now $200 million.  


 Significantly restores the K‐12 Learning Recovery Emergency Block 
Grant from the proposed $2.5 billion reduction to a $494.5 million 
reduction.  


 Significantly reduces the reliance of one‐time funds to cover ongoing 
costs of LCFF.  


 Includes $15 million Proposition 98 General Fund for the commercial 
dishwasher grant program outside of the Kitchen Infrastructure and 
Training Funds.  


Approves the following new Legislature Proposals 


 Moves toward childcare rate reform by increasing reimbursement 
rates to support and stabilize childcare providers, including providers 
of State Preschool programs.  


 Waives childcare fees through September 30, 2023, and provides 
permanent family fee reform, capping family fees at one percent of 
family income and waiving family fees for families with income under 
75% of state median income, including State Preschool programs. 


Michael continued review of his activities by highlighting that he visited 
the Special Education Art Show held in the Education Village Multi‐
purpose room, he celebrated the ALFA Spring Reading Challenge winner 
at Arbuckle State Pre‐school, and he attended the Adult School 
Graduation.  Michael also shared the ATP 2022‐23 Yearbook with the 
Board, and they were impressed by the work that Art Teacher Bob 
Kirkman put into the publication.  Discussion was held on celebrating 
CCOE graduating seniors. 


6.1.2 Superintendents Council – No May Meeting   







Colusa County Board of Education 
June 21, 2023, Regular Meeting 
Page 3 


6.2 Administrative Services – Aaron Heinz 
The Board did not have any questions or comments about Aaron Heinz’s June 
2023 Administrative Services written report. 


6.3 Student Services – Chuck Wayman 
The Board did not have any questions or comments about Chuck Wayman’s June 
2023 Student Services written report. 


6.4 Technology Services – Alex Evans 
The Board did not have any questions or comments about Alex Evans’ June 2023 
Technology Services written report. 


7.0 BOARD QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 
No questions or comments. 


7.1 Board President’s Report 
No report. 


8.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items on the agenda 
No public input. 


9.0 CONSENT AGENDA 
All items are approved by one motion unless pulled by a Board member for separate 
discussion or action.  Serena Morrow/Moved, Madison Martin/Seconded, and the 
motion carried four ayes, one absent (Brenda Miller) to approve the following Consent 
Agenda item: 


9.1 Approve Minutes of the May 10, 2023, Regular Board Meeting 


10.0 OLD BUSINESS 
10.1 Community College District Territory (standing item) 


Michael West reported that he met with Lake COE Superintendent Brock 
Falkenburg and YCCD Trustees Douglas Harris (Region 7) and Susan Alves (Region 6) 
to discuss issues and concerns.  After the lunch meeting, Mr. Harris reached out and 
asked to attend CCOE’s Board Meeting in August. 


10.2 Facilities Update (standing item) 
Michael West reported on ongoing landscape projects. 


10.3 LCAP Update (standing item)  
10.3.1 2023 LCAP Performance Indicators 


No discussion. 


10.3.2 2023‐24 CCOE Annual System of Support Plan 
John Ithurburn reported on the 2023‐24 CCOE Annual System of Support 
Plan, which is a summary of CCOE’s continuous LCAP Differentiated 
Assistance to districts. John said that he added a new objective to Goal 2 
regarding supporting LEAs with chronic absenteeism through establishing 
and maintaining a SARB. 


10.4 Universal Prekindergarten (standing item) 
No report.    







Colusa County Board of Education 
June 21, 2023, Regular Meeting 
Page 4 


11.0 NEW BUSINESS 
11.1 Approve 2023‐24 Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP) 


Serena Morrow/Moved, Ed Conrado/Seconded, and the motion carried four 
ayes, one absent (Brenda Miller) to approve the 2023‐24 Local Control 
Accountability Plan (LCAP). 


11.2 Approve 2023‐24 Colusa County Office of Education Budget 
Ed Conrado/Moved, Serena Morrow/Seconded, and the motion carried four 
ayes, one absent (Brenda Miller) to approve the 2023‐24 Colusa County Office of 
Education Budget. 


11.3 Approve Board Resolution No. 22/23‐05 Colusa County Superintendent of 
Schools and the Colusa County Board of Education Regarding the 2023‐24 
Education Protection Account 
Aaron Heinz explained that the resolution provides a reporting of the Education 
Protection Account funds that can be used for instruction, and he reviewed the 
budgeted amounts. 


Serena Morrow/Moved, Cristy Edwards/Seconded, and the motion carried four 
ayes, one absent (Brenda Miller) to approve Board Resolution No. 22/23‐05 
Colusa County Superintendent of Schools and the Colusa County Board of 
Education Regarding the 2023‐24 Education Protection Account. 


11.4 Approve Resolution 22/23‐06 Authorizing Execution of the Application and 
Agreement for Social Security Coverage for Employees of the Colusa County 
Office of Education Who are Members of the California Public Employees' 
Retirement System 
Aaron Heinz provided a history of the issue of Section 218 agreements with the 
Social Security Administration, and he said that the resolution, which is CalPERS’ 
form, verifies the employee election process. 


Serena Morrow/Moved, Madison Martin/Seconded, and the motion carried four 
ayes, one absent (Brenda Miller) to approve Resolution 22/23‐06 Authorizing 
Execution of the Application and Agreement for Social Security Coverage for 
Employees of the Colusa County Office of Education Who are Members of the 
California Public Employees' Retirement System. 


11.5 Approve Resolution 22/23‐07 Resolution Authorizing Election Under Public 
Contract Code Section 22030 to Become Subject to the California Uniform 
Public Construction Cost Accounting Procedures 
Aaron Heinz reported that CCOE’s facilities consultant recommended that CCOE 
become CUPCCA certified, and although CCOE already follows these procedures, 
this resolution will formalize that certification. 


Ed Conrado/Moved, Cristy Edwards/Seconded, and the motion carried four ayes, 
one absent (Brenda Miller) to approve Resolution 22/23‐07 Resolution 
Authorizing Election Under Public Contract Code Section 22030 to Become 
Subject to the California Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting 
Procedures. 


   







Colusa County Board of Education 
June 21, 2023, Regular Meeting 
Page 5 


11.6 Second Reading:  Board Policy Revision 
BP 3013 Compensation of County Board Members 
Tina Maxwell reported that edits shown on the policy were the same edits that 
the Board reviewed during their May Board meeting. 


Madison Martin/Moved, Ed Conrado/Seconded, and the motion carried four 
ayes, one absent (Brenda Miller) to approve the revision of BP 3013 
Compensation of County Board Members. 


11.7 First Reading:  May 10, 2023, Board Policy Revision 
OP 3013 Opting Out of Stipend and/or Mileage Reimbursement Payments 
Discussion was held on changing the word “awards” to “scholarships.”  This 
change will be  made to OP 3013 Opting Out of Stipend and/or Mileage 
Reimbursement Payments, and the procedure will be brought forward to the 
July 12, 2023, Board meeting for a second reading. 
 
Discussion was held on the tax status of scholarship donations, which are not tax 
deductible. 


12.0 ADVANCED PLANNING 
12.1 Items to be Considered for the Next Board Meeting 


No items added. 


12.2 Next Regular Board Meeting 
July 12, 2023, 4:00 p.m. 
345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room 


13.0 ADJOURNMENT 
The meeting adjourned at 4:39 p.m. 


Adopted and Entered    Respectfully Submitted 
 
 
 
         
Madison Martin, President    Michael P. West, County Superintendent 
Colusa County Board of Education    and Secretary, Colusa County Board of Education







  Attachment A 


ACRONYMS 
 


ALFA  And Literacy for All Initiative 


ATP  Adult Transition Program 


BP  Board Policy 


CCBE  California County Boards of Education 


CCOE  Colusa County Office of Education 


COE  County Office of Education 


CSBA  California School Boards Association 


CUPCCA  California Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting 


LCAP  Local Control and Accountability Plan 


LCFF  Local Control Funding Formula 


OP  (Board) Operating Procedure 


SARB  School Attendance Review Board 


YCCD  Yuba Community College District 


 







  10.3 


  
 


 
COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
Minutes of Regular Meeting July 12, 2023 


Board Members Present:  None 
 
Staff/Visitors Present:  None 


On July 10, 2023, Michael P. West, Clerk to the Colusa County Board of Education, declared that the 
July 12, 2023, Regular Meeting of the Colusa County Board of Education was adjourned due to the 
expected lack of a quorum.  All items on the July 12, 2023, agenda were added to the August 9, 2023, 
Regular Board Meeting agenda. 


Adopted and Entered    Respectfully Submitted 
 
 
 
         
Brenda Miller, President    Michael P. West, County Superintendent 
Colusa County Board of Education    and Secretary, Colusa County Board of Education 







Policy and Procedures Manual 
Colusa County Board of Education  OP 3013.00 
Operating Procedures  Page 1 of 1 


Opting Out of Stipend and/or Mileage Reimbursement Payments 
Colusa County Board of Education 


I,   , a member of  the Colusa County Board of Education, 
declare that the meeting stipends and/or mileage reimbursements that are due to me for my service 
at Colusa County Board of Education meetings are declined. 


The Board recognizes  the  importance of providing educational opportunities and encourages  the 
Superintendent to support awards scholarships to Colusa County students in programs operated by 
the Colusa County Office of  Education  as well  as Colusa County  school districts  to  further  their 
educational goals. 


I acknowledge that I may make changes to the contribution amount at the beginning of each fiscal 
year by filling out a new form.  On the date written below, I have declined the following payment 
category, by the percent indicated, to be used to further educational goals of Colusa County Office 
of Education students: 


           %  Monthly Stipend             %  Mileage Reimbursement for Board Business Meetings 


Board Member’s Signature  Date 


References: 
Board Policies and Operating Procedures 
  BP 3013 Compensation of County Board Members 


Education Code 
  1090 Compensation for Members and Mileage Allowance County Boards of Education salaries 
and expenses 


Adopted:  August 13, 2013 
Revised:  July 12, 2023 


10.4







Code: Select Code  Section: Search


1000.


1001.


1002.


Up^ Add To My Favorites
EDUCATION CODE - EDC


TITLE 1 GENERAL EDUCATION CODE PROVISIONS [1. - 32500] ( Title 1 enacted by Stats. 1976, Ch. 1010. )


DIVISION 1 GENERAL EDUCATION CODE PROVISIONS [1. - 32500] ( Division 1 enacted by Stats. 1976, Ch. 1010. )


PART 2. COUNTY EDUCATIONAL AGENCIES [1000 - 2603] ( Part 2 enacted by Stats. 1976, Ch. 1010. )


CHAPTER 1. County Boards of Education [1000 - 1097] ( Chapter 1 enacted by Stats. 1976, Ch. 1010. )


ARTICLE 1. Election, Jurisdiction, Organization and Procedure [1000 - 1017] ( Article 1 enacted by Stats. 1976, Ch. 
1010. )


  Except in a city and county, there shall be a county board of education, which shall consist of five or seven 
members to be determined by the county committee on school district organization. Each member of the board shall 
be an elector of the trustee area which he represents and shall be elected by the electors of the trustee area. In 
chartered counties the manner of selection of the county board of education shall be prescribed in the county 
charter, or by the county board of supervisors. In a county unified school district or in a unified or elementary school 
district which includes all of the territory over which a county superintendent of schools has jurisdiction, the 
governing board of the district shall serve as the county board of education.


(Enacted by Stats. 1976, Ch. 1010.)


  (a) In those counties where the county superintendent of schools has jurisdiction over a school district 
situated in two or more counties, any qualified elector residing in the part of the school district situated in a county 
whose county superintendent of schools does not have jurisdiction of that school district shall be eligible to vote for 
one or more members of the county board of education of the county whose county superintendent of schools has 
jurisdiction over the school district. Each such elector shall be eligible to vote for the member of the county board of 
education representing the trustee area of that county having jurisdiction as designated by the county committee on 
school district organization. The committee shall apportion the portion of the school district territory not situated in 
the county having jurisdiction to one or more trustee areas of the other county so that that territory shall, insofar as 
possible, be represented as if it were situated in the county having jurisdiction. The territory so apportioned shall not 
become a part of the trustee area to which apportioned for any other purpose. As used in this subdivision, “school 
district” means any joint union elementary school district, joint union high school district, or joint unified school 
district, but does not include any community college district.


(b) Any person who is a resident of a county and is made eligible to vote for the county board of education of
another county pursuant to subdivision (a) shall not be eligible to vote for the county board of education of the
county of which he or she is a resident. Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this subdivision, a person shall
be eligible to vote for both county boards of education if he or she is a resident of an elementary school district of
any type that is included in a joint union high school district and the elementary school district and the joint union
high school district are each under the jurisdiction of different county superintendents of schools.


(c) “County,” for purposes of this section, includes any county other than a charter county for which the charter
specifies that this section does not apply.


(Amended by Stats. 1987, Ch. 870, Sec. 1.)


  (a) Upon being so requested by the county board of education, the county committee on school district 
organization, by a two-thirds vote of the members, may either change the boundaries of any or all of the trustee 
areas of the county, or propose to increase or decrease the number of members of the county board of education, or 
both. The trustee areas shall be as nearly equal in population as may be, except that in establishing or changing the 
boundaries of the trustee areas the county committee may give consideration to the following factors:


(1) Topography.


(2) Geography.


Home Bill Information California Law Publications Other Resources My Subscriptions My Favorites


12.1







1003.


1004.


1005.


1006.


1007.


(3) Cohesiveness, contiguity, integrity, and compactness of territory.


(4) Community of interests of the trustee areas.


In any event, the county committee shall ensure that trustee areas are as nearly equal in population as practicable.


(b) Following each decennial federal census, and using population figures validated by the Population Research Unit 
of the Department of Finance as a basis, the county committee shall adjust the boundaries of any or all of the 
trustee areas of the county board of education as necessary to meet the population criteria set forth in subdivision 
(a).


(c) Changes in trustee area boundaries or a proposed reduction in the number of county board of education 
members shall be made in writing and filed with the county board of supervisors not later than the first day of March 
of any school year.


(d) In those counties in which the election of members of county boards of education are required to be held on the 
same date as prescribed for the election of members of governing boards of school districts, as provided in Section 
1007, the county committees on school district organization shall fix the boundaries of trustee areas, insofar as 
possible, to coincide with the boundaries of school districts.


(e) Whenever the boundaries of trustee areas are changed so as to be coterminous with those of supervisorial 
districts of the county, the election for members of the county board of education shall be consolidated with the 
countywide election.


(Amended by Stats. 1992, Ch. 451, Sec. 1. Effective August 7, 1992.)


  When a county committee on school district organization proposes to reduce from seven to five or increase 
from five to seven the number of members of the county board of education, the county committee shall call and 
conduct a hearing on the matter. At the conclusion of the hearing, the county committee shall, by resolution, 
approve or disapprove the proposal.


(Enacted by Stats. 1976, Ch. 1010.)


  The resolution of the county committee approving a reduction or increase in the number of members of the 
county board of education shall constitute an order of election, and the proposal shall be presented to the electors of 
the county not later than the next succeeding election for members of the county board of education. The ballot 
shall contain the following words, as appropriate:


“For decreasing (increasing) the number of members of the county board of education from seven (five) to five 
(seven)—Yes”


“For decreasing (increasing) the number of members of the county board of education from seven (five) to five 
(seven)—No”


(Enacted by Stats. 1976, Ch. 1010.)


  The boundaries of any trustee area shall not at any time be changed so as to affect the term of office of any 
member of the county board of education who has been elected and whose term of office has not expired.


(Enacted by Stats. 1976, Ch. 1010.)


  (a) Any registered voter is eligible to be a member of the county board of education except the county 
superintendent of schools or any member of his or her staff, or any employee of a school district that is within the 
jurisdiction of the county board of education.


(b) Notwithstanding any other law, the county board of education may adopt or the residents of the county may 
propose, by initiative, a proposal to limit or repeal a limit on the number of terms a member of the county board of 
education may serve on the county board of education. Any proposal to limit the number of terms a member of the 
county board of education may serve on the county board of education shall apply prospectively only and shall not 
become operative unless it is submitted to the electors of the county at a regularly scheduled election and a majority 
of the votes cast on the question favor the adoption of the proposal.


(c) An initiative measure proposed pursuant to subdivision (b) shall be subject to the procedures set forth in Chapter 
2 (commencing with Section 9100) of Division 9 of the Elections Code.


(Amended by Stats. 2012, Ch. 499, Sec. 1. (AB 1662) Effective January 1, 2013.)


  (a) Members of the county board of education shall be elected on the date and in the manner prescribed for 
the election of members of governing boards of school districts, provided the elections are held throughout the 
county on the same date; otherwise the election shall be consolidated with the direct primary election. Once 
established, no subsequent change of circumstances shall require that the time of holding the election be changed. 







1008.


1009.


1010.


1011.


1012.


1013.


1014.


1015.


1016.


1017.


Where the elections for governing board members are held on the same date, then the provisions of Section 5303 
shall apply to the election of members of the county board of education. Elections held pursuant to this article shall 
be conducted by the county board of education. Members elected at the time of the direct primary shall take office 
on the first day of July, and members elected at the date on which members of school district governing boards are 
elected shall take office on the second Friday in December subsequent to their election. The county committee on 
school district organization shall determine the manner in which the county board of education first elected shall 
effect a staggering of terms.


(b) This section shall govern the election and term of office of members of a county board of education except as
provided under Sections 1302 and 10404.5 of the Elections Code.


(Amended by Stats. 2018, Ch. 146, Sec. 1. (AB 2449) Effective January 1, 2019.)


  When any vacancy exists on the county board of education of any county on or after December 1, 1978, the 
vacancy shall be filled in the manner prescribed in Article 3 (commencing with Section 5090) of Chapter 1 of Part 4.


(Repealed and added by Stats. 1979, Ch. 9.)


  The county board of education shall organize at a meeting held in each year by electing one of their number 
president of the board. The meeting at which the organization is conducted shall be either the first meeting on or 
after the second Friday in December, or the first meeting on or after the first day in July, depending upon whether, 
pursuant to Section 1007, the terms of office of board members commence on the second Friday in December or the 
first day in July.


(Amended by Stats. 2018, Ch. 146, Sec. 2. (AB 2449) Effective January 1, 2019.)


  The county superintendent of schools is ex officio secretary and executive officer of the board.


(Enacted by Stats. 1976, Ch. 1010.)


  Regular meetings of the board shall be held at times it may determine, but not less than once per month and 
shall be conducted in accordance with Chapter 9 (commencing with Section 54950) of Division 2 of Title 5 of the 
Government Code.


(Amended by Stats. 1987, Ch. 1452, Sec. 4.)


  Special meetings may be called by the president whenever, in his judgment, the exigencies of the schools 
require them to be held. Upon the request of any three members, in writing, the president shall call a special 
meeting.


(Enacted by Stats. 1976, Ch. 1010.)


  A majority of the members shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business.


(Enacted by Stats. 1976, Ch. 1010.)


  No teacher’s certificate shall be issued or renewed, nor shall any books or apparatus be adopted except by an 
affirmative vote of at least a majority of the members of the board.


(Enacted by Stats. 1976, Ch. 1010.)


  On the call of any member, the ayes and nays shall be taken upon any proposition, and the vote shall be 
recorded in the minutes of the board.


(Enacted by Stats. 1976, Ch. 1010.)


  At special meetings, no business shall be transacted other than such as may be specified in the call of the 
president, except that certificates to teach, upon credentials, may be granted, and unexpired certificates to teach 
may be renewed at any meeting of the board.


(Enacted by Stats. 1976, Ch. 1010.)


  In those counties in which the election of members of county boards of education are required to be held on 
the same date as prescribed for the election of members of governing boards of school districts, as provided in 
Section 1007, the offices of those members of the county board of education whose terms have been fixed to expire 
in even-numbered years shall become vacant upon the expiration of those terms. The vacancies arising shall be 


filled by the majority of the remaining members of the board, and the appointees shall hold office only until the first 
day of July following the election of their successors.


(Enacted by Stats. 1976, Ch. 1010.)



tmaxwell

Highlight



tmaxwell

Highlight



tmaxwell

Highlight



tmaxwell

Highlight



tmaxwell

Highlight



tmaxwell

Highlight







6/2/23, 1:19 PM Law section 


Home 


FORMATIO 


Bill Information California Law Publications Other Resources My Subscriptions 


Code: ~[ G_O_V ___ v~[ Section: 54953 


1!~ < < Previous Next > > cross-reference chagtered bills PDF I Add To MY. Favorites 


Search Phrase: 
GOVERNMENT CODE-GOV 


TITLE 5. LOCAL AGENCIES [50001 • 57607] ( Title 5 added by Stats. 1949, Ch. 81. ) 


My Favorites 


I Search [ (D 


I Highlight I 


DIVISION 2. CITIES, COUNTIES, AND OTHER AGENCIES [53000 • 55821] ( Division 2 added by Stats. 1949, Ch. 81.) 


PART 1. POWERS AND DUTIES COMMON TO CITIES, COUNTIES, AND OTHER AGENCIES [53000 • 54999.7] ( 


Part 1 added by Stats. 1949, Ch. 81 . ) 


CHAPTER 9. Meetings [54950 • 54963] ( Chapter 9 added by Stats. 1953, Ch. 1588. ) 


54953. (a) All meetings of the legislative body of a local agency shall be open and public, and all persons shall be 
permitted to attend any meeting of the legislative body of a local agency, except as otherwise provided in this 
chapter. 


(b) (1) Notwithstanding any other provision of law, the legislative body of a local agency may use teleconferencing 
for the benefit of the public and the legislative body of a local agency in connection with any meeting or proceeding 
authorized by law. The teleconferenced meeting or proceeding shall comply with all otherwise applicable 
requirements of this chapter and all otherwise applicable provisions of law relating to a specific type of meeting or 
proceeding . 


(2) Teleconferencing, as authorized by this section, may be used for all purposes in connection with any meeting 
within the subject matter jurisdiction of the legislative body. If the legislative body of a local agency elects to use 
teleconferencing, the legislative body of a local agency shall comply with all of the following : 


(A) All votes taken during a teleconferenced meeting shall be by rollcall . 


(B) The teleconferenced meetings shall be conducted in a manner that protects the statutory and 
constitutional rights of the parties or the public appearing before the legislative body of a local agency. 


(C) The legislative body shall give notice of the meeting and post agendas as otherwise required by this 
chapter. 


(D) The legislative body shall allow members of the public to access the meeting and the agenda shall provide 
an opportunity for members of the public to address the legislative body directly pursuant to Section 54954.3. 


(3) If the legislative body of a local agency elects to use teleconferencing, it shall post agendas at all 
teleconference locations. Each teleconference location shall be identified in the notice and agenda of the meeting 


or proceeding, and each teleconference location shall be accessible to the public. During the teleconference, at 
least a quorum of the members of the legislative body shall participate from locations within the boundaries of 
the territory over which the local agency exercises jurisdiction, except as provided in subdivision (d) . 


(c) (1) No legislative body shall take action by secret ballot, whether preliminary or final. 


(2) The legislative body of a local agency shall publicly report any action taken and the vote or abstention on that 
action of each member present for the action . 


(3) Prior to taking final action, the legislative body shall orally report a summary of a recommendation for a final 
action on the salaries, salary schedules, or compensation paid in the form of fringe benefits of a local agency 
executive, as defined in subdivision (d) of Section 3511.1, during the open meeting in which the final action is to 


be taken . This paragraph shall not affect the public's right under the California Public Records Act (Division 10 
(commencing with Section 7920.000) of Title 1) to inspect or copy records created or received in the process of 
developing the recommendation . 


https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=54953.&nodeTreePath=6.2.1.22&IawCode=GOV 1/4 


12.1







6/2/23, 1:19 PM Law section 


(d) (1) Notwithstanding the provisions relating to a quorum in paragraph (3) of subdivision (b), if a health authority 
conducts a teleconference meeting, members who are outside the jurisdiction of the authority may be counted 
toward the establishment of a quorum when participating in the teleconference if at least 50 percent of the number 
of members that would establish a quorum are present within the boundaries of the territory over which the 
authority exercises jurisdiction, and the health authority provides a teleconference number, and associated access 
codes, if any, that allows any person to call in to participate in the meeting and the number and access codes are 
identified in the notice and agenda of the meeting . 


(2) Nothing in this subdivision shall be construed as discouraging health authority members from regularly 
meeting at a common physical site within the jurisdiction of the authority or from using teleconference locations 
within or near the jurisdiction of the authority. A teleconference meeting for which a quorum is established 
pursuant to this subdivision shall be subject to all other requirements of this section . 


(3) For purposes of this subdivision, a health authority means any entity created pursuant to Sections 14018.7, 
14087.31, 14087.35, 14087.36, 14087.38, and 14087.9605 of the Welfare and Institutions Code, any joint 
powers authority created pursuant to Article 1 (commencing with Section 6500) of Chapter 5 of Division 7 for the 
purpose of contracting pursuant to Section 14087.3 of the Welfare and Institutions Code, and any advisory 


committee to a county-sponsored health plan licensed pursuant to Chapter 2.2 (commencing with Section 1340) 
of Division 2 of the Health and Safety Code if the advisory committee has 12 or more members. 


(e) (1) The legislative body of a local agency may use teleconferencing without complying with paragraph (3) of 
subdivision (b) if, during the teleconference meeting, at least a quorum of the members of the legislative body 
participates in person from a singular physical location clearly identified on the agenda, which location shall be open 
to the public and situated within the boundaries of the territory over which the local agency exercises jurisdiction 
and the legislative body complies with all of the following : 


(A) The legislative body shall provide at least one of the following as a means by which the public may 
remotely hear and visually observe the meeting, and remotely address the legislative body : 


(i) A two-way audiovisual platform. 


(ii) A two-way telephonic service and a live webcasting of the meeting . 


(B) In each instance in which notice of the time of the teleconferenced meeting is otherwise given or the 
agenda for the meeting is otherwise posted, the legislative body shall also give notice of the means by which 
members of the public may access the meeting and offer public comment. 


(C) The agenda shall identify and include an opportunity for all persons to attend and address the legislative 
body directly pursuant to Section 54954.3 via a call - in option, via an internet-based service option, and at the 
in-person location of the meeting . 


(D) In the event of a disruption that prevents the legislative body from broadcasting the meeting to members 
of the public using the call-in option or internet-based service option, or in the event of a disruption within the 
local agency's control that prevents members of the public from offering public comments using the call - in 
option or internet-based service option, the legislative body shall take no further action on items appearing on 
the meeting agenda until public access to the meeting via t he call-in option or internet-based service option is 
restored . Actions taken on agenda items during a disruption that prevents the legislative body from 
broadcasting the meeting may be challenged pursuant to Section 54960.1. 


(E) The legislative body shall not require public comments to be submitted in advance of the meeting and 
must provide an opportunity for the public to address the legislative body and offer comment in real time. 


(F) Notwithstanding Section 54953 .3, an individual desiring to provide public comment through the use of an 
internet website, or other online platform, not under the control of the local legislative body, that requires 
registration to log in to a teleconference may be required to register as required by the third-party internet 
website or online platform to participate. 


(2) A member of the legislative body shall only participate in the meeting remotely pursuant to this subdivision, if 
all of the following requirements are met: 


(A) One of the following circumstances applies : 


(i) The member notifies the legislative body at the earliest opportunity possible, including at the start of a 
regular meeting, of their need to participate remotely for just cause, including a general description of the 


https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=54953.&nodeTreePath=6.2.1.22&IawCode=GOV 2/4 







6/2/23, 1:19 PM Law section 


circumstances relating to their need to appear remotely at the given meeting. The provisions of this clause 
shall not be used by any member of the legislative body for more than two meetings per calendar year. 


(ii) The member requests the legislative body to allow them to participate in the meeting remotely due to 
emergency circumstances and the legislative body takes action to approve the request. The legislative body 
shall request a general description of the circumstances relating to their need to appear remotely at the 
given meeting. A general description of an item generally need not exceed 20 words and shall not require 
the member to disclose any medical diagnosis or disability, or any personal medical information that is 
already exempt under existing law, such as the Confidentiality of Medical Information Act (Chapter 1 
(commencing with Section 56) of Part 2.6 of Division 1 of the Civil Code) . For the purposes of this clause, 
the following requirements apply : 


(I) A member shall make a request to participate remotely at a meeting pursuant to this clause as soon 
as possible. The member shall make a separate request for each meeting in which they seek to 
participate remotely. 


(II) The legislative body may take action on a request to participate remotely at the earliest opportunity. 


If the request does not allow sufficient time to place proposed action on such a request on the posted 
agenda for the meeting for which t he request is made, the legislative body may take action at the 
beginning of the meeting in accordance with paragraph (4) of subdivision (b) of Section 54954.2. 


(B) The member shall publicly disclose at the meeting before any action is taken whether any other individuals 
18 years of age or older are present in the room at the remote location with the member, and the general 
nature of the member's relationship with any such individuals. 


(C) The member shall participate through both audio and visual technology. 


(3) The provisions of this subdivision shall not serve as a means for any member of a legislative body to 
participate in meetings of the legislative body solely by teleconference from a remote location for a period of 
more than three consecutive months or 20 percent of the regular meetings for the local agency within a calendar 
year, or more than two meetings if the legislative body regularly meets fewer than 10 times per calendar year. 


(f) The legislative body shall have and implement a procedure for receiving and swiftly resolving requests for 
reasonable accommodation for individuals with disabilities, consistent with the federal Americans with Disabilities 
Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sec. 12132), and resolving any doubt in favor of accessibility. In each instance in which 
notice of the time of the meeting is otherwise given or the agenda for the meeting is otherwise posted, the 
legislative body shall also give notice of the procedure for receiving and resolving requests for accommodation . 


(g) The legislative body shall conduct meetings subject to this chapter consistent with applicable civil rights and 
nondiscrimination laws. 


(h) (1) Nothing in this section shall prohibit a legislative body from providing the public with additional 
teleconference locations. 


(2) Nothing in this section shall prohibit a legislative body from providing members of the public with additional 
physical locations in which the public may observe and address the legislative body by electronic means. 


(i) For the purposes of this section, the following definitions shall apply : 


(1) " Emergency circumstances" means a physical or family medical emergency that prevents a member from 
attending in person . 


(2) "Just cause" means any of the following : 


(A) A childcare or caregiving need of a child, parent, grandparent, grandchild, sibling, spouse, or domestic 
partner that requ ires them to participate remotely. "Child," "parent," "grandparent," "grandchild," and "sibling" 
have the same meaning as those terms do in Section 12945.2. 


(B) A contagious illness that prevents a member from attending in person . 


(C) A need related to a physical or mental disability as defined in Sections 12926 and 12926.1 not otherwise 
accommodated by subdivision (f) . 


(D) Travel while on official business of the legislative body or another state or local agency. 


https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=54953.&nodeTreePath=6.2.1.22&IawCode=GOV 3/4 







6/2/23, 1:19 PM Law section 


(3) "Remote location" means a location from which a member of a legislative body participates in a meeting 
pursuant to subdivision (e), other than any physical meeting location designated in the notice of the meeting. 
Remote locations need not be accessible to the public. 


(4) "Remote participation" means participation in a meeting by teleconference at a location other than any 
physical meeting location designated in the notice of the meeting . Watching or listening to a meeting via 
webcasting or another similar electronic medium that does not permit members to interactively hear, discuss, or 
deliberate on matters, does not constitute remote participation . 


(5) "Teleconference" means a meeting of a legislative body, the members of which are in different locations, 
connected by electronic means, through either audio or video, or both . 


(6) "Two-way audiovisual platform" means an online platform that provides participants with the abil ity to 
participate in a meeting via both an interactive video conference and a two-way telephonic function . 


(7) "Two-way telephonic service" means a telephone service that does not require internet access, is not provided 
as part of a two-way audiovisual platform, and allows participants to dial a telephone number to listen and 
verbally participate. 


(8) "Webcasting" means a streaming video broadcast online or on television, using streaming media technology 
to distribute a single content source to many simultaneous listeners and viewers. 


(j) This section shall become operative January 1, 2024, shall remain in effect only until January 1, 2026, and as of 
that date is repealed . 
(Amended (as added by Stats. 2021, Ch. 165, Sec. 4) by Stats. 2022, Ch. 285, Sec. 2. (AB 2449) Effective January 


1, 2023. Operative January 1, 2024, by its own provisions. Repealed as of January 1, 2026, by its own provisions. 


See later operative version added by Sec. 3 of Stats. 2022, Ch. 285.) 


https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=54953.&nodeTreePath=6.2.1.22&IawCode=GOV 4/4 







Policy and Procedures Manual 
Colusa County Board of Education  BP 9100.00 
Series 9000—Bylaws  Page 1 of 2 


Organization 


The Colusa County Board of Education  (Board)  shall organize at a meeting held  in each  year by 
electing one member President of the Board. The meeting at which the organization is conducted 
shall be on or after the second Friday in December, or the first meeting on or after the first day in 
July, depending upon whether, pursuant  to Section 1007,  the  terms of office of board members 
commence on the second Friday  in December or the  first day  in July.   The date and time  for the 
Organizational Meeting shall be set in the preceding year Board of Education Schedule of Meetings. 


The county superintendent of schools is ex officio secretary and executive officer of the board. 


At this organizational meeting the Board shall from its members: 


1. In election years, accept Certificates of Election, certify Appointments in Lieu of Election, and
administer Oaths of Office.


2. Elect one of its members to be Vice President. This member shall be one who previously has
not served in office, unless all Board members have previously served in office. After serving
one year as Vice President, the elected member shall serve one year as President of the Board.
Accept  the  Board  President  Rotation  Schedule  and  thereby  elect  the  President  and  Vice
President of the Board.


3. Develop a schedule of regular meetings for the year.  Regular meetings of the board shall be
held at times it may determine, but not less than once per month and shall be conducted in
accordance with the Government Code known as the Ralph M. Brown Act.


4. Develop  a Board  calendar  for  the  year.  The  calendar  shall  schedule matters  such  as  budget
meetings, goal setting and policy and program reviews.


5. Set Board Liaison Assignments.


References: 
Board Policies and Procedures 


9122 Ex Officio Secretary/Executive Officer 
  9320 Meetings and Notices 
Education Code 


1009 Annual organizational meeting 
1010 County superintendent – ex‐officio secretary and executive officer 
1011 Regular meetings 


Government Code 
54950‐54963 The Ralph M. Brown Act 
54953 Meetings using teleconferencing 
54954 Time and place of regular meetings 


12.1.1







 


Policy and Procedures Manual 
Colusa County Board of Education  BP 9100.00 
Series 9000—Bylaws  Page 2 of 2 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Adopted:  December 15, 1994 
Reviewed: March 10, 1999 
Revised:  February 13, 2008, January 9, 2019, September 13, 2023 







Policy and Procedures Manual 
Colusa County Board of Education  BP 9122.00 
Series 9000—Bylaws  Page 1 of 1 


Ex Officio Secretary/ and Executive Officer 


The Colusa County Superintendent of Schools, acting as ex officio secretary/executive officer of the 
Colusa County Board of Education (Board), shall have the following duties: 


1. Prepare and maintain the Board agenda.


2. Prepare and maintain the Board minutes.


3. Maintain Board records and documents.


4. Submit to Board officers members the correspondence addressed to them.


References: 
Board Policies and Procedures 


9100 Organization 
9320 Meetings and Notices 


  9322 Agenda/Meeting Materials 
Education Code 


1010 County superintendent – ex‐officio secretary and executive officer 
35025 School district board employs a secretary 


Adopted:  December 15, 1994 
Reviewed:  March 10, 1999, December 12, 2007 
Revised:  September 13, 2023 


12.1.2







Policy and Procedures Manual 
Colusa County Board of Education  BP 9320.00 
Series 9000—Bylaws  Page 1 of 8 


Meetings and Notices 


The Colusa County Board of Education (Board) recognizes that State California open meeting  laws 
define a “meeting” as: 


1. Any congregation of a majority of the members of the Board In at the same time and place,
including teleconference location as permitted by Government Coded 54953, to hear, discuss or
deliberate upon any item that is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board or Colusa
County Office of Education (County Office).


2. Any use of direct of a series of communications, directly or through personal intermediaries,
including social media or technological devices, by a majority of Board members to develop a
collective concurrence as to an action the members will take on an item.


However,  the  Colusa  County  Superintendent  of  Schools  (Superintendent)  or  a  County  Office 
employee or official may engage in separate conversations or communications with individual Board 
members in order to answer questions or provide information regarding an item within the subject 
matter jurisdiction of the Board, as long as that person does not communicate comments or positions 
discussed to other Board members. 


Board members may engage  in  separate conversations or  communications on an  internet‐based 
social  media  platform  to  answer  questions,  provide  information  to  the  public,  or  to  solicit 
information from the public regarding a matter that is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the 
Board provided that a majority of the members of the Board do not use the social media to discuss 
among themselves business of a specific nature that is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the 
Board.  A Board member shall not respond directly to any communication on social media regarding 
a matter that is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board, which is made, posted, or shared 
by any other member of the Board. 


Provided  that a majority of  the Board members do not discuss among  themselves business of a 
specific  nature  that  is within  the  county  office  of  education Board’s  subject matter  jurisdiction, 
attendance by a majority of  the Board’s members at any of  the  following events and  individual 
contacts or conversations between a Board member and any other person are not subject to State 
open meeting laws: 


1. A conference or similar public gathering that involves a discussion of issues of general interest
to the public or to school boards.


2. An open, publicized meeting organized by a person or organization other than the County
Office to address a topic of local community concern.


3. An open and noticed meeting of another body of the County Office.


4. A purely social or ceremonial occasion.


12.1.3







 


Policy and Procedures Manual 
Colusa County Board of Education  BP 9320.00 
Series 9000—Bylaws  Page 2 of 8 


5. An open and noticed meeting of a standing committee of the Board, provided that the Board 
members who are not members of the standing committee attend only as observers. 


Individual contacts or conversations between a Board member and any other person are not subject 
to the Brown Act. 


Board meetings shall be open  to  the public and held within County Office boundaries, except as 
allowed by law. The Board welcomes public participation at its open meetings for purposes identified 
in law. 


To  help  ensure  the  participation  of  individuals with  disabilities  at  Board meetings,  appropriate 
disability‐related accommodations or modifications shall be provided upon request  in accordance 
with  the Americans with Disabilities Act. Any doubt about a request  for accommodation shall be 
resolved in favor of accessibility.  All Board meeting agendas shall include information regarding how, 
when,  and  to whom  a  request  for disability‐related  accommodations or modifications,  including 
auxiliary  aids  and  services,  may  be  made  by  an  individual  who  requires  accommodations  or 
modifications to participate in the Board meeting. 


Regular Meetings 
During its Annual Organizational Meeting on or after the second Friday in December, the Board shall 
adopt a schedule specifying the date, time, and place of its regular meetings.  Regular meetings of 
the board shall be held at times it may determine, but not less than once per month. 


At  least 72 hours prior to a regular meeting, the agenda shall be posted at one or more  locations 
freely accessible to members of the public and on the County Office’s primary website homepage.  If 
a document which relates to an open session agenda item of a regular Board meeting is distributed 
to the Board less than 72 hours prior to the meeting, the document shall be made available for public 
inspection at a public office or location designated for that purpose or on the County Office’s web 
site at the same time the document is distributed to all or a majority of the Board  


A notice of each regular meeting, and any special meeting called at least one week in advance, shall 
be mailed to any person who has filed with the Board a written request for such notice. The notice 
shall be mailed at least one week before the meeting. Requests are valid for one year from the date 
filed unless renewed. Renewal requests must be filed within 90 days after January 1 of each year. 


Special Meetings 
Special meetings of  the Board may be  called by  the presiding officer or a majority of  the Board 
members.    However,  a  special meeting  shall  not  be  called  regarding  the  salary  or  any  other 
compensation of the Superintendent. 


Notice of special meetings shall be delivered either by mail or personally at least 24 hours before the 
meeting to all Board members, the Superintendent, and the local media who have requested such 
notice in writing. This notice also shall be posted at least 24 hours before the meeting in a location 
freely accessible to the public and on the County Office’s primary website homepage. The notice 







 


Policy and Procedures Manual 
Colusa County Board of Education  BP 9320.00 
Series 9000—Bylaws  Page 3 of 8 


shall specify the time and place of the meeting and the business to be transacted; no other business 
shall be considered at these meetings. 


When a special meeting is called at least one week in advance, notice of the meeting shall be mailed 
at least one week before the meeting to any person who has appropriately filed with the Board a 
written request for notice of regular meetings. 


Every notice of a special meeting shall provide an opportunity for members of the public to directly 
address the Board concerning any  item that has been described  in the meeting notice, before or 
during the item's consideration. 


Emergency Meetings 
The Board may hold an emergency meeting without complying with the 24‐hour notice or posting 
requirement in the following cases: 


1.  A work stoppage or other activity which severely impairs public health, safety, or both, as 
determined by a majority of the members of the Board. 


2.  A crippling disaster which severely impairs public health, safety, or both, as determined by a 
majority of the members of the Board. 


Except  in the case of a crippling disaster, the Board president or designee shall give notice of the 
emergency meeting  to  the  local media by  telephone one hour before  the meeting.  If  telephone 
services are not functioning, the notice requirement of one hour is waived. As soon after the meeting 
as possible,  the Board shall notify  local media which have requested notice  for special meetings, 
describing the purpose of the meeting and any action taken by the Board. 


No  closed  session may be  held  during  an  emergency meeting. All  other  rules  governing  special 
meetings shall be observed, with the exception of the 24‐hour notice requirement. The minutes of 
the meeting, a list of persons the president or designee notified or attempted to notify, a copy of the 
roll call vote, and any actions taken at the meeting shall be posted for at least ten days in a public 
place as soon after the meeting as possible. 


Adjourned Meetings 
A majority vote by  the Board may adjourn any meeting  to a  later  time and place which shall be 
specified  in the order of adjournment. Less than a quorum of the Board may also adjourn such a 
meeting.  Within 24 hours after a meeting has been adjourned to a later time, a copy of the order of 
adjournment shall be posted at the meeting site. 


If no members are present at any regular or adjourned regular meeting, the secretary may declare 
the meeting adjourned to a later time and shall give notice in the same manner required for special 
meetings. 


Teleconferencing 
A teleconference is a meeting of the Board in which members are in different locations, connected 
by electronic means through either audio or video, or both. The Board may use a teleconference for 







 


Policy and Procedures Manual 
Colusa County Board of Education  BP 9320.00 
Series 9000—Bylaws  Page 4 of 8 


all purposes in connection with any meeting within its subject matter jurisdiction, and in such case 
the following requirements must be satisfied: 


1. The agenda must be posted at all teleconference locations. 


2. Each teleconference location must be accessible to the public. 


3. The agenda must  identify each  teleconference  location,  the  teleconference number, and any 
associated access codes. 


4. At least a quorum must participate from locations within the boundaries over which the Board 
has jurisdiction. 


5. All votes in a teleconferenced meeting must be by roll call. 


OPTIONAL ADDITION NUMBER 1 (ENDS JANUARY 1, 2024) 


Teleconferencing During a Proclaimed State of Emergency 
Until January 1, 2024, the Board may conduct Board meetings by teleconference without posting 
agendas at all teleconference locations, identifying teleconference locations in meeting notices and 
agendas,  allowing  public  access  to  each  teleconference  location,  providing  an  opportunity  for 
members of the public to address the Board directly at each teleconference location, and ensuring 
that at  least a quorum of  the Board participate  from  locations within County Office boundaries, 
during a proclaimed  state of emergency pursuant  to Government Code 8625‐8629  in any of  the 
following circumstances: 


1. State or local officials have imposed or recommended measures to promote social distancing. 


2. For the purpose of determining, by majority vote, whether as a result of the emergency, meeting 
in person would present imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees. 


3. When it has been determined, by majority vote as described in Item #2 above, that as a result of 
the  emergency, meeting  in  person would  present  imminent  risks  to  the  health  or  safety  of 
attendees. 


To  conduct  a  teleconference meeting  for  these  purposes,  the  following  requirements  shall  be 
satisfied:  


1. The notice and agenda shall be as given and posted as otherwise required by the Brown Act. 


2. The notice and agenda of the meeting shall specify the means by which members of the public 
may  access  the meeting  and offer public  comments,  including  via  a  call‐in or  internet‐based 
service option. 







 


Policy and Procedures Manual 
Colusa County Board of Education  BP 9320.00 
Series 9000—Bylaws  Page 5 of 8 


Members of the public may be required to register to log in to a meeting when making public 
comments through an internet web site or other online platform that is operated by a third‐party 
and not under the control of the Board. 


3. Members of the public shall be allowed to access the meeting, and the agenda shall provide an 
opportunity for members of the public to address the Board directly. 


4. Members of the public shall not be required to submit public comments in advance of a Board 
meeting and shall be provided with an opportunity to address the Board and offer comments in 
real time. 


5. Public comment periods shall not be closed until the timed public comment period,  if such  is 
offered by the Board, has elapsed or, if not timed, until a reasonable amount of time per agenda 
item has been allowed. 


6. If  during  a  Board  meeting  a  disruption  occurs  which  prevents  the  County  Office  from 
broadcasting the meeting to members of the public using the call‐in option or  internet‐based 
service option, or in the event of a disruption within the Board's control that prevents members 
of the public from offering public comments, the Board shall take no further action on any agenda 
item until public access via the call‐in or internet‐based service option to the meeting is restored. 


The Board is not required to, but at its discretion, may provide a physical location from which the 
public may attend or comment. 


The  Board  may  continue  to  conduct  meetings  by  teleconference,  as  specified  above  for 
teleconferencing during proclaimed states of emergency, by a majority vote finding within 30 days 
after teleconferencing for the first time, and every 30 days thereafter, that either: 


1. The state of emergency continues to directly  impact the ability of the Board to meet safely  in 
person. 


2. State or local officials continue to impose or recommend measures to promote social distancing. 


OPTIONAL ADDITION NUMBER 2 (ENDS JANUARY 1, 2026) 


Teleconferencing During a Personal Emergency 
Until  January  1,  2026, with  approval  from  the majority  of  the  Board,  a  Board member may  be 
permitted  to  participate  in  a meeting  remotely  when  a  physical  or  family medical  emergency 
prevents  the Board member  from attending  in person. The Board member  requesting  to appear 
remotely shall notify the Board of the emergency situation as soon as possible and provide a concise 
general description of the circumstances relating to the Board member's need to appear remotely. 
The Board member shall not be required to disclose any disability, medical diagnosis, or personal 
medical information exempt under existing law. 







 


Policy and Procedures Manual 
Colusa County Board of Education  BP 9320.00 
Series 9000—Bylaws  Page 6 of 8 


If the request to participate remotely due to emergency circumstances does not allow sufficient time 
to place the proposed action on the posted agenda for the meeting for which the request is made, 
the Board may approve such a request by a majority vote of the legislative body at the beginning of 
the meeting. 


A  Board member may  not  appear  remotely  under  emergency  circumstances  for more  than  20 
percent of the Board's regular meetings or for more than three consecutive months. When a Board 
member is approved to participate remotely due to emergency circumstances, the Board member is 
not required to participate from a location which is accessible to the public and the location does not 
need to be identified on the agenda. 


If permitted to participate remotely, the Board member shall utilize both audio and visual technology 
and publicly disclose, before any action is taken, whether any other individuals 18 years or older are 
present  in the remote  location with the Board member, and the general nature of the member's 
relationship with such individuals. 


The County Office shall also provide public access to the meeting via a two‐way audiovisual platform 
or a two‐way audio service and a live webcast, with public comment being allowed via the remote 
platform as well as in person and the public shall be able to offer comments in real time. The agenda 
shall include information describing how members of the public can access the platform. 


If a disruption prevents broadcasting the meeting to members of the public using the call‐in option 
or internet‐based service option, or a disruption that is within the Board's control prevents members 
of the public from offering public comments using the call‐in option or internet‐based service option, 
the Board shall not take action on agenda items until public access to the meeting is restored. 


 


OPTIONAL ADDITION NUMBER 3 (ENDS JANUARY 1, 2026) 


Teleconferencing for "Just Cause" 
A Board member may be permitted to appear remotely, pursuant to the provisions below, for just 
cause for no more than two meetings per calendar year. A Board member appearing for just cause 
shall notify the Board at the earliest possible opportunity of the need to participate in the meeting 
remotely, including at the start of a regular meeting. 


Just Cause may exist for any of the following: 


1. A childcare or caregiving need of a child, parent, grandparent, grandchild,  sibling,  spouse, or 
domestic partner that requires a Board member to participate remotely. 


2. A contagious illness prevents a Board member from attending in person. 


3. A Board member has a need related to a physical or mental disability not otherwise reasonably 
accommodated. 







 


Policy and Procedures Manual 
Colusa County Board of Education  BP 9320.00 
Series 9000—Bylaws  Page 7 of 8 


4. A Board member  is  traveling while on official business of  the Board or another state or  local 
agency. 


When a Board member participates remotely for just cause, the Board member is not required to 
participate from a  location which  is accessible to the public and the  location does not need to be 
identified on the agenda. 


If the Board member participates remotely, the Board member shall utilize both audio and visual 
technology and publicly disclose, before any action is taken, whether any other individuals 18 years 
or older are present in the remote location with the County Board member, and the general nature 
of the member's relationship with such individuals. 


The County Office shall also provide public access to the meeting via a two‐way audiovisual platform 
or a two‐way audio service and a live webcast, with public comment being allowed via the remote 
platform as well as in person and the public shall be able to offer comments in real time. The agenda 
shall include information describing how members of the public can access the platform. 


If a disruption prevents broadcasting the meeting to members of the public using the call‐in option 
or internet‐based service option, or a disruption that is within the County Board's control prevents 
members of  the public  from offering public comments using  the call‐in option or  internet‐based 
service option, the County Board shall not take action on agenda  items until public access to the 
meeting is restored. 


 
   







 


Policy and Procedures Manual 
Colusa County Board of Education  BP 9320.00 
Series 9000—Bylaws  Page 8 of 8 


References: 
Board Policies and Procedures 
  1120 ‐ Governing Board Meetings 
  1340 Access to District Records Moved to Superintendents policy and title corrected 
  9100 Organization 
  9121 President 
  9321 Closed Session Purposes and Agendas 
  9321.1 ‐ Closed Session Conduct and Reports 
  9322 Agenda/Meeting Materials 
  9323 Meeting Conduct 


Superintendents Policies and Procedures 
  1340 Access to Public Records 


Education Code 
  1009 Annual organizational meeting 
  1010 County superintendent – ex‐officio secretary and executive officer 
  1011 Regular meetings 
  1012 Special meetings 
  35140 Time and place of meetings 
  35144 Special meetings 
Government Code 
  54950‐54963 The Ralph M. Brown Act 
  54952.2 Meeting defined 
  54953 Meetings using teleconferencing 
  54954 Time and place of regular meetings 
  54954.1 Public may request agenda to be mailed 
  54954.2 Agenda posting requirements; board actions 
  54954.3 Opportunity for public to address legislative body 
  54954.5 Closed Sessions 
  54955 Meeting adjournment 
  54956 Special meetings 
  54956.5 Emergency meetings 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Adopted:  December 15, 1994 
Reviewed: March 10, 1999 
Revised:  October 11, 2006, September 13, 2023 







Policy and Procedures Manual 
Colusa County Board of Education  BP 9322.00 
Series 9000—Bylaws  Page 1 of 4 


Agenda/Meeting Materials 


Colusa County Board of Education (Board) agendas shall state the meeting time and place and shall 
briefly describe each business item to be transacted or discussed, including items to be discussed in 
closed session. 


The Board agenda shall provide members of  the public with  the opportunity  to  testify at regular 
meetings  on matters  which  are  not  on  the  agenda,  but  which  are  within  the  subject matter 
jurisdiction of the Board. Notices of special meetings at which action  is proposed shall provide an 
opportunity for the public to address the Board on the item before action is taken. 


Any member of the public may request that a matter within the jurisdiction of the Board be placed 
on the agenda of a regular meeting. The request must be  in writing and submitted to the Colusa 
County Superintendent of Schools (Superintendent) with supporting documents and information, if 
any, at least one week before the scheduled meeting date. Items submitted less than a week before 
the  scheduled meeting  date may  be  postponed  to  a  later meeting  to  allow  sufficient  time  for 
consideration and research of the issue. 


Any Board member may submit an item for the Board agenda any time before the agenda is posted. 
Items submitted less than a week before the scheduled meeting date may be postponed to a later 
meeting. 


The Board President or the Superintendent or designee will decide whether a request is within the 
subject matter jurisdiction of the Board, whether the item should be an action item subject to Board 
vote  or  an  information  item  that  does  not  require  immediate  action,  and whether  an  item  is 
appropriate for discussion in open or closed session. 


If a request from a Board member to place an item on the agenda is denied, the member may ask 
the Board to take action to determine whether the item shall be placed on the agenda. 


When an item properly posted for a regular meeting is continued to a meeting occurring within five 
days of the regular meeting, it does not have to be on the agenda of a subsequent meeting which 
occurs within five days. The Board shall publicly identify the item before discussing it. 


Each agenda  for a  regular meeting  shall  list  the physical and web address designated  for public 
inspection of documents related to an open session item, or for records of a statement threatening 
litigation against the Colusa County Office of Education (County Office)   to be discussed  in closed 
session, when such documents have been distributed to the Board  less than 72 hours before the 
meeting. 


The agenda shall  include  information regarding how, when, and to whom a request for disability‐
related accommodations or modifications, including auxiliary aids and services, may be made by an 
individual who requires accommodations or modifications to participate in the Board meeting. 


12.1.4







 


Policy and Procedures Manual 
Colusa County Board of Education  BP 9322.00 
Series 9000—Bylaws  Page 2 of 4 


All public communications with the Board are subject to the requirements of relevant Board policies 
and administrative regulations operating procedures. 


Consent Items 
To promote efficient meetings, the Board may act upon more than one item by a single vote through 
the use of a consent agenda. Consent items are items of a routine nature or items for which no Board 
discussion is anticipated and for which the Superintendent recommends approval. 


In accordance with law, the public has a right to comment on any consent item. At the request of 
any member of the Board, any item on the consent agenda shall be removed and given individual 
consideration for action as a regular agenda item. 


Any Board action  that  involves borrowing $100,000 or more  shall be discussed,  considered, and 
deliberated upon as a separate item of business on the meeting agenda and may not be included on 
the consent agenda. 


Agenda Dissemination to Board Members Preparation 
A copy of the agenda shall be forwarded to each Board member at least three days 72 hours before 
each  regular  meeting,  together  with  the  Superintendent  or  designee’s  report,  minutes  to  be 
approved,  copies  of  communications,  any  reports  from  committees,  the  Superintendent,  staff, 
citizens and others, and other available documents pertinent to the meeting. 


When special meetings are called, the secretary and president shall make every effort to get the 
agenda and support materials to Board members as soon as possible Board members shall receive, 
at least 24 hours prior to the meeting, notice of the business to be transacted. 


Board members shall review agenda materials before each meeting. Individual Board members may 
confer directly with  the  Superintendent or designee  to obtain additional  information on agenda 
items and should also  let the Superintendent or designee know of any related concerns they may 
have.  The Superintendent or designee shall not communicate comments or positions discussed to 
other Board members.  However, a majority of County Board members shall not, outside of a noticed 
meeting, directly or through intermediaries or electronic means discuss, deliberate, or take action 
on any matter within the subject matter jurisdiction of the County Board. 


Agenda Dissemination to Members of the Public 
Any agenda and related materials distributed to the Board shall be made available to the public upon 
request without delay. Only those documents, which are public records under the California Public 
Records Act and which relate to an agenda item scheduled for the open session portion of a regular 
meeting, or which contain a claim or written threat of  litigation which will be disclosed  in closed 
session shall be made available to the public shall be made available to the public. 


At  least 72 hours prior to a regular meeting, the agenda shall be posted at one or more  locations 
freely accessible to members of the public and on the County Office’s primary website homepage.  
The web site posted agenda shall be accessible through a prominent direct link to the current agenda. 







 


Policy and Procedures Manual 
Colusa County Board of Education  BP 9322.00 
Series 9000—Bylaws  Page 3 of 4 


If a document which relates to an open session agenda item of a regular Board meeting is distributed 
to the Board less than 72 hours prior to the meeting, the document shall be made available for public 
inspection at a public office or location designated for that purpose or on the County Office’s web 
site at the same time the document is distributed to all or a majority of the Board. 


As secretary to the Board, it is the responsibility of the Superintendent or designee to mail a copy of 
the agenda or the documents constituting the agenda packet to any person who requests the items 
and, if the person requests delivery by email, to email the materials or a web site link to the materials 
to that person. The requested materials shall be emailed or mailed at the time the agenda is posted 
or upon distribution of the agenda to a majority of the Board, whichever occurs first. 


Any request for mailed copies of agendas or agenda packets shall be in writing and shall be valid for 
the calendar year in which it is filed. Written requests must be renewed following January 1 of each 
year. 


Any document prepared by the Board or County Office and distributed during a public meeting shall 
be made available for public inspection at the meeting. Any document prepared by another person 
and presented at the meeting shall be made available for public inspection after the meeting. These 
requirements  shall  not  apply  to  a  document  that  is  exempt  from  public  disclosure  under  the 
California Public Records Act. 


Upon request, the Superintendent or designee shall make the agenda, agenda packet, and/or any 
writings distributed at the meeting available  in appropriate alternative formats to persons with a 
disability, as required by the Americans with Disabilities Act. 


References: 
Board Policies and Procedures 
  1120 Governing Board Meetings 
  1312.1 Complaints Concerning School Personnel 
  1312.2 Complaints Concerning Instructional Material 
  1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures 
  1340 Access to District Records Moved to Superintendents policy and title corrected 
  3320 Claims and Actions Against the District 
  5144.1 Suspension/Expulsion 
  9122 Ex Officio Secretary/Executive Officer 
  9200 Board Members 
  9320 Meetings and Notices 
  9321 Closed Session Purposes and Agendas 
  9323 Meeting Conduct 
  9323.2 Actions by the Board 


Superintendents Policies and Procedures 
  1340 Access to Public Records 


Education Code 
  1009 Annual organizational meeting 
  1010 County superintendent – ex‐officio secretary and executive officer 







 


Policy and Procedures Manual 
Colusa County Board of Education  BP 9322.00 
Series 9000—Bylaws  Page 4 of 4 


  1011 Regular meetings 
  1012 Special meetings 
  35144 Special meetings 
  35145 Public meetings 
  35145.5 Agenda; public participation and regulations 
Government Code 
  53635.7 Separate item of business on agenda 
  54950‐54963 The Ralph M. Brown Act   
  54952.2 Meeting defined 
  54953 Meetings using teleconferencing 
  54954 Time and place of regular meetings 
  54954.1 Public may request agenda to be mailed 
  54954.2 Agenda posting requirements; board actions 
  54954.3 Opportunity for public to address legislative body 
  54954.5 Closed sessions 
  54956 Special Meetings 
  54956.5 Emergency meetings 
  54956.9 Closed session claim documents subject to public inspection 
  54957.5 Agendas are public records and available for public inspection 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Adopted:  December 15, 1994 
Reviewed: March 10, 1999, March 12, 2008 
Revised:  September 13, 2023 







csba 
California School Boards Association 


June 15, 2023 


Superintendent and Board President 
Colusa COE 
345 5th St., Ste. A 
Colusa, CA 95932 


Dear Superintendent and Board President of Colusa COE: 


~!EC!E!V!E~ 
JUL 1 0 2023 


COLUSA COUN"iY 
OFFICE OF EDUCATION 


Please find your enclosed invoice for Colusa COE' s 2023-24 CSBA membership dues. We greatly appreciate your 
membership in CSBA and the difference it makes for California's public schools, and we look forward to our continued 
partnership. This mailing contains: 


Invoice for your 2023-24 CSBA membership dues and CCBE membership dues. 
• Your membership in CSBA allows you to take advantage of a host of CSBA 's optional subscription services. 


Invoice(s) for optional subscription payments, as listed below: 
• CSBA Educational Legal Alliance (ELA) membership dues( ,, , .--sh,1.or!! d.i). 
• GAMUT subscription dues (Policy, Policy Plus and/or Meetings, as applicable, for current subscribers). 
• Online Leaming Center subscription renewal (for current subscribers). 


Additional subscription services available to CSBA members: 


CSBA Legal Services: Legal Services clients enjoy an attorney-client relationship with CSBA attorneys who can provide 
cost-effective legal advice on all matters related to public education. Clients also have unlimited access to our online 
Resource Library, a repository of CBAs , MOUs, salary schedules and legal resources. Your cost to subscribe to Legal 
Services for 2023-24 is $310, with attorney time billed at $200/hour. New clients receive the first 3 hours of attorney time 
free of charge. GAMUT Policy Plus subscribers also receive 2 additional free hours of legal policy review - $1,000 
of attorney services (free hours must be used within one year). Visit k!.!a lscn iL'Ls csba.orn . 


Online Learning Center: CSBA 's expanded on-demand Online Learning Center offers you education and knowledge 
when you want and where you want. Colusa CO E' s cost for a 2023-24 individual subscription would be $300, or get access 
for your entire board and superintendent for $1500. Visit nk .Liha.01 l! . 


NEW! GAMUT Documents: Save all your important board documents in one central , online location with pennissions 
to provide board members, staff and the public access to exactly what they need while protecting sensitive data. 


NEW! GAMUT Communications: Share impo1iant updates via news feeds and create calendars using separate channels 
for internal and public viewers. Contact gamuuu csb,u,rg for more info on these new services. 


CSBA is your organization, and we encourage you to contact us with your member needs! 


CSBA's Director of Membership, Aaron Davis , can be reached at (916) 669-3274 or ada,, 11 csha.01!.!. 


Your CSBA Director providing leadership in Region 4 is Renee Nash of Eureka Union SD. 


Your CSBA PACER (Public Affairs & Community Engagement Representative), CSBA's liaison to local school and 
county boards of education, is Susanne Baremore, . harcmmL u "· ba.ur!... 


Thank you for your membership in CSBA and for all that you do to ensure a high-quality education for every student. 


Sincerely, 


~a.v-'7Y\~ 
Susan Markarian 


\/.::_~~~ 
Vernon M. Billy 


CSBA President CSBA CEO & Executive Director 


California School Board s Association I 3251 Beacon Blvd., West Sacramento, CA 95691 I (800) 266 -3382 I w.vw.csba .org 


12.2







csba Please refer to your invoice number and customer 
number in all communications regarding this invoice. 


California School Boards Association 
(916) 371-4691 


Invoice Number 
INV-66888-S9Z3H1 


Bill To: 
Colusa COE 
146 7th St 
Colusa, CA 95932-2432 
United States 


Invoice Date 
6/14/2023 


Product Code Description 


PO# 


CSBA CSBA Membership (07/01 /2023 - 06/30/2024) 


CCBE CCBE Membership (07/01/2023 - 06/30/2024) 


ELA ELA Membership (07/01/2023 - 06/30/2024) 


Dues not processed before September 15 will result in a disruption of CSBA services. 
Trustees and employees of LEAs that have not paid membership dues by September 
15 will not be granted access to CSBA's Annual Education Conference and Trade 
Show. AEC registrations made absent membership dues may be canceled on 
September 15. Registrants will be refunded , minus a processing fee , and hotel 
reservations canceled on September 16. 


Total Invoice: $4,836.oo Total Paid: $0.00 


Unit Price 


$3,104.00 


$956.00 


$776.00 


Ship To: 
Colusa COE 
345 5th St. , Ste. A 
Colusa, CA 95932 
United States 


Quantity Extended 
Price 


1.00 $3,104.00 


1.00 $956.00 


1.00 $776.00 


Balance Due: $4,836.oo 


Terms 


_ -x- _________ ....... _______ _:~~~~~ ~~! ~~~ ~~~~ _A_N_D_ ~~~!-:~~ ~?!~'?~ _S;~~ -~I!~ _P!' ;~E:";. __________ ____ ______ . __ . . . _ 


csba 
Ca lifornia School Boards Assooat,on 


Customer Number Invoice Number 


100004 INV-66888-S9Z3H1 


Make checks payable to: 
California School Boards Association - CSB (6744) 
clo West America Bank 
P.O. Box 1450 
Suisun City, CA 94585-4450 


Invoice Date 


06/14/2023 


Bill To: 
Colusa COE 
146 7th St 
Colusa, CA 95932-2432 
United States 


Terms Balance Due 


$4,836.00 







csba 
California School Boards Association 
(916) 371-4691 


Invoice Number 
INV-65911-P7N4H6 


Bill To: 
Colusa COE 
146 7th St 
Colusa, CA 95932-2432 
United States 


Invoice Date 
6/13/2023 


Product Code Description 


PO# 


Please refer to your invoice number and customer 
number in all communications regarding this invoice. 


Ship To: 
Colusa COE 
345 5th St. , Ste. A 
Colusa, CA 95932 
United States 


Unit Price Quantity Extended 
Price 


Terms 


GAMUT/POLICY Gamut Policy ( 07/01 /2023 - 06/30/2024 ) $2,705.00 1.00 $2,705.00 Net 30 


Have you renewed your CSBA Membership for 2023-24? Only CSBA members enjoy 
exclusive access to GAMUT and to CSBA's trainings, resources and services. Don't 
forget to renew your CSBA membership by September 15 to maintain uninterrupted 
access to GAMUT services. 


Total Invoice: $2,705.oo Total Paid: $0.00 Balance Due: $2,105.00 


~./ PLEASE DETACH HERE AN D RETURN BOTTOM STUB WITH PAYMENT 
- -~- - - - - - - - - .. - - - - - - - - - - - - - .. - - - .. - - .. - -- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -


csba 
Cali fornia Scl1ool Boards Assooation 


Customer Number Invoice Number 


100004 INV-65911-P7N4H6 


Make checks payable to: 
California School Boards Association - CSB (6744) 
c/o West America Bank 
P.O. Box 1450 
Suisun City, CA 94585-4450 


Invoice Date 


06/13/2023 


Bill To: 
Colusa COE 
146 7th St 
Colusa, CA 95932-2432 
United States 


Terms 


Net 30 


Balance Due 


$2,705.00 







c.8•1:D CALIFORNIA COUNTY 
BOARDS OF EDUCATION 
A 'Voice for ~tion 


BENEFITS OF MEMBERSHIP 


California County Boards of Education (CCBE) membership gives county board members access to 
resources that help them fulfill their unique and complex governance and leadership roles. CCBE is here 
to help its members, whether a member has been part of the education community for many years or is 
just starting out. CCBE understands that support is necessary for its members to make thoughtful 
decisions that result in increased student achievement. CCBE is a dynamic network of members 
maximizing educational opportunities for all and is an essential part of our state's K-12 education 
leadership, providing a voice for County Boards at the state and federal levels. 


Membership to the California County Boards of Education (CCBE) is composed of only member county 
boards, including those that are both county and district boards. Membership is based on a fiscal year, 
starting July I and ending June 30. Membership to the California School Boards Association (CSBA) is a 
requisite to CCBE membership. 


The benefits of membership far outweigh the annual cost of membership and allow CCBE to continue to 
provide these services while covering operational costs. To learn more about CCBE, please view the 
CCBE President video at http://theccbe.org/en/Membership. 


Below are the benefits you receive as part of your membership in CCBE. 


Advocacy efforts: CCBE raises public awareness of important public education issues and reviews and 
takes positions on proposed state and federal legislation that affects county members and county offices 
of education. 


Policy services: CCBE, in collaboration with CSBA, provides a series of sample board policies for use 
by county offices of education that reflect recent legislation, court decisions, and educational trends. These 
sample policies are available through CSBA's Gamut Online and are continuously updated throughout the 
year in a joint effort between CCBE members and CSBA. 


Professional development: CCBE offers specific training for newly elected and first-term county board 
members as well as continued professional development opportunities for veteran members. In addition, 
CCBE allows county board members to focus on specific county issues, leadership development, and 
network with other county board members at its Annual Conference. 


Communications: CCBE provides its members with a County Perspective section in CSBA's monthly 
California SchoolNews publication, CCBE website, and an electronic directory updated each spring 
containing contact information for CCBE, CSBA and California County Superintendent leadership, and 
county office of education board members and superintendents. Only CCBE members can purchase the 
Trustee Handbook, published in December 2022. 


General Membership: The General Membership meets twice a year where member counties receive 
reports from CCBE's committees and leadership, initiate, review, amend, and adopt organizational bylaws, 
policies, goals, objectives, and resolutions, and elect the nominating committee members and CCBE 
officers. Meetings are open to all county member boards that have paid in full the annual CSBA and CCBE 
membership dues. 


325 I Beacon Blvd., West Sacramento, CA 95691 I (916) 669-3281 I Fax (916) 371-3407 I www.theccbe.org 







ADVOCACY 


From California 


2023 LEGISLATIVE ACTION 
WEEK: In March, more than 375 
CSBA members - a new atten


dance record - took part in virtual 


meetings with more 110 Californ ia 


legislators and their staff during 
CSBA's flagship statewide advo


cacy event. Held during a critical 
time in the legislative process, 


these important meetings gen


erated increased awareness and 
support from legislators on key 


issues (such as cybersecurity and 


small school district staffing) and 


directly helped to advance CSBA's 


2023-24 state budget priorities. 


To D.C 


2023 COAST2COAST: In April, 


CSBA held its second annual fed


eral advocacy trip to Washington, 
D.C., in partnership w ith the 


Association of California School 


Administrators (ACSA). More than 


200 CSBA and ACSA members 


attended three days of events, 
which culm inated with meetings 


with members of Congress and 


their staff on Capitol Hill, advocat


ing in support of key issues such 


as broadband access, cybersecu


rity, special education funding, 


student mental health, nutrition 


and Secure Rural Schools. 


STATE BUDGET: Even with an overa ll state budget that accounts for a pro


jected $31.5 billion deficit, advocacy by CSBA members and staff throughout 


was directly reflected in certain key aspects of the May Revision, including: 


Juvenile court and county community schools: A big win for 


CSBA advocacy, the May Revision proposes an additiona l $80 mi ll ion 
in ongoing Proposition 98 funding to support these county office of 


education -operated schools. Throughout th is year, CSBA has partnered 


with the California County Superintendents and the Los Angeles County 


Office of Education to advocate for funding for these crucial programs. 


Cost of living adjustment: A proposed increased from 8.13 to 8.22 
percent for al l programs, including $3.4 billion for the Local Control 


Funding Formula. 


Universal school meals: The May Revision includes an additional $110 
mil lion in one-time Proposition 98 General Fund and approximately $191 
million ongoing Proposition 98 General Fund to ful ly fund the program 


in the 2022-23 and 2023-24 fiscal years. 


CSBA is touring the state, 


hosting town hall-style meetings 


to give our members an oppor-


tunity to connect directly with CSBA's 


leadership to hear member feedback, 


discuss the issues important to you and 


share CSBA resources and services. 


See all the 2023 Roadshow stops at 
csba.org/2023roadshow. 


CSBA District and County 
Office of Education 
Legal Services 


CSBA members now have the opportu


nity to subscribe to CSBA Lega l Services 


and receive expert legal advice and 


guidance from experienced attorneys 


specializing in education law for 


California school districts and county 


offices of education . 


Visit legalservices.csba.org 


-- California School Boards Association I 3251 Beacon Blvd., West Sacramento, CA 95691 I www.csba .org 







2023 SPONSORED LEGISLATION: CSBA introduced several sponsored bills in 2023, including: 


> ASSEMBLY BILL 1023 (PAPAN), CYBERSECURITY, 


would increase protection aga inst ransomware attacks 


by ensuring schools are included in state-level cyberse


curity planning and implementation. 


> SENATE BILL 64S (OCHOA-BOGH), SMALL DISTRICT 


ADMINISTRATORS, would allow small school districts 


to hire the appropriate number of administrators based 


upon school size, helping small districts better meet the 


needs of their students, teachers and staff. 


> AB 906 (GIPSON), COURT AND COMMUNITY 


SCHOOLS, would provide juvenile court and county 


community schools with sufficient and predictable 


resources by including funding in a county office of 


education's base grant. 


> AB 417 (BENNETT), STUDENT BOARD MEMBERS, 


would increase authori ty for county offices of education 


to appoint a student school board member. 


MEMBER SERVICES, RESOURCES AND TRAININGS 


BUSINESS PARTNERS AND AFFILIATES: CSBA and the 


Ca liforn ia Association of School Business Officials (CASBO) 


have joined forces w ith Carahsoft Technology Corp. to 


assist CSBA members w ith reducing costs and simplifying 


compliance in acqui ring the hardware, software, train


ing, consulting and cybersecurity services needed to 


support student achievement and streamline operations 


( cs ba. o rg/busi nessaffi I iates). 


RESEARCH & EDUCATION POLICY DEVELOPMENT (REPD): 


REPD's dedicated COVID Relief Funding research page con 


ta ins va rious resources in a two-part series examin ing how 


California LEAs have spent pandemic relief money, along with 


a new fact sheet, "California's Progress Spending Covid Relief 


Funding - winter 2022 update" (csba .org/GovernanceAnd 


PolicyResources). CSBA's School Safety page also contains 


numerous resources, such as webinar recordings and sample 


policies for CSBA members (csba.org/schoolsafety). REPD is 


also hosting a series of focus groups in 2023 examin ing the 


impacts of California's new law on later school start times. 


> AB 483 (MURATSUCHI), STUDENT HEALTH SERVICES, 


would expand access to school-based health and menta l 


health services by increasing funding for student support 


services and streamlining key processes. 


> SB 551 (PORTANTINO), MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES 


ACT FUNDING, would enhance the collaboration between 


county menta l health agencies and school districts and 


mandate that direct services to students be prioritized. 


> SB 765 (PORTANTINO), TEACHER WORKFORCE, 


would seek to help mitigate the teacher shortage cr isis by 


streamlin ing the process for reti red teachers to return to 


the classroom. 


> HOUSE RESOLUTION 10 & SENATE RESOLUTION 12, 


SCHOOL BOARD RECOGNITION MONTH, resolved that 


the Ca lifornia Assembly and Senate declare the state's appre


ciat ion to every school board and school board member and 


proclaim January 2023 as School Board Recogn ition Month. 


EDUCATION LEGAL ALLIANCE (ELA): In January, ELA filed 


a lawsuit against the California State Board of Education, in 


support of the Napa Valley Unified School District's position 


in its litigation related to the Mayacamas Charter School 


petit ion. Among other claims, CSBA cha llenged the SBE for 


"exceeding its authority and improperly substituting its judg


ment for the discretionary judgment of the governing board 


of NVUSD and the Napa County Board of Education." The 


ELA is actively involved in several additiona l cases supporting 


publ ic schools statewide (csba.org/ela). 


WEBINARS: 2023 webinars - avai lable free of charge for 


CSBA members - have included Trauma-Informed Education. 
What governance teams need to know, Managing OPEB 
Costs and other Liabilities within Changing Budgets, and 


Safety First: Expert tips for supporting effective school safety 
plans and student mental health (csba.org/webinars). 


Renew your CSBA membership for 2023-24. 
For more information, please contact CSBA's Director of Membership Aaron Davis 


at 916-669-3274 or adavis@csba.org I www.csba.org 


-- California School Boards Association I 3251 Beacon Blvd ., West Sacramento, CA 95691 I www.csba.org 







Who we are 
The California School Boards Association's 


Education Legal Alliance is a consortium of 
school districts, county offices of education, and 


Regional Occupational Centers/Programs that 


have voluntarily joined together for the past 30 


years to create a powerful force to pursue and 


defend a broad spectrum of statewide public 


education interests before state and federal 


courts, state agencies and the Legislature. 


What we do 
» Initiate litigation on issues of statewide 


importance, such as Proposition 98 funding 


» File amicus briefs and letters supporting school 


districts and county offices of education on 


issues of statewide importance to public schools 


» Advocate for education-related legislation 


» Provide information to members on ELA issues 


How we work 
An advisory committee of experienced school 


law attorneys assists in providing legal analysis 


and recommendations for ELA involvement to the 


Steering Committee. 


ELA involvement is reviewed by a broad-based 


Steering Committee consisting of school board 


members, superintendents, and statewide 


education leaders. 


Recent activities 
The ELA is appealing the ongoing miscalculation of the Educational Revenue 
Augmentation Fund (ERAF), pursuant to the State Controller's guidance, which 


may result in an estimated compounding loss of $ 1 billion dollars over a 3-year 


period. The Superior Court denied the ELA's Writ of Mandate seeking to require 


county auditors to include charter school ADA in their ERAF calculations. The 


ELA continues to work on this issue as it moves through the courts. 


Amicus Support: The ELA's amicus work ensures courts understand the 


impact their decisions will have on districts and county offices of education 


throughout the state, including 


» Brennon B. v. West Contra Costa USO. protecting LEAs against excessive 
damages awards under the misapplication of the Unruh Act, where the 


Supreme Court held in favor of the District and in line with the amicus 
briefs filed by the ELA. The Court's opinion found that the Unruh Civil 


Rights Act does not apply to LEAs because the Act applies only to 
"business establishments," and LEAs are not business establishments 


as defined by the Act 


» CP V Walnut v. Fremont USO: ensuring LEAs can assess appropriate 


developer fees to build and modernize school facilities, where the 


appellate court cited to the ELA's amicus brief in making its favorable 


ruling for Fremont USD. 


» Fellowship of Chnstian Athletes, et al. v. San Jose USO: safeguarding a 


school district's application of nondiscrimination policies to a student 


club that excludes students in certain protected classes from holding 


leadership positions. 


for your support! 
Your annual contribution to Education Legal Alliance ensures that we can 


continue this vital work. For more information about your membership, please 


contact the CSBA legal department at (800) 266-3382 or legal@csba.org . 


csbaO California School Boards Association, Education Lega l Alliance 


3251 Beacon Blvd., West Sacramento, CA 95691 


www.csba .org/ELA Oct/2022 







MEETINGS 


DOCUMENTS 


POLICY & 
POLICY PLUS 


COMMUNICATIONS 


Maximize productivity with GAMUT 
Board Management Solutions. 


• 
The GAMUT platform now includes two new modules, GAMUT Communications 
and GAMUT Documents. 


GAMUT MEETINGS 


GAMUT paperless board meeting management software helps you keep it all straight by streamlining agenda prepara
tion, providing easy, secure on line access to materials, and ensuring every agenda item is aligned w ith your strategic goals. 


Manage all of your meetings in one, convenient location. 


Ensure proper access for each user through custom user roles and permissions 


Create custom workflows for submitting and approving agenda items for specific meetings. 


Search archived meetings and quickly sort by meeting type, date, and more. 


Easily create and deliver meeting minutes and record votes. 


csba 'ii Califo rn ia School Boards Associat ione May 2023 I www.csba.org 







GAMUT POLICY & POLICY PLUS 


GAMUT Policy 


The most comprehensive set of sample school policies in California. Board policies and administrative regulations can 
be hard to keep track of when you're busy working on strategic initiatives. CSBA's GAMUT Policy offers quick access 


to more than 650 sample board policies, regulations, bylaws, and their legal references. 


24 hour access to CSBA's Sample Policy Manual 


Receive email notifications when a policy has been updated 


Find legal references directly linked to policies 


Search all of our sample policies to quickly get the information you need 


GAMUT Policy Plus 


Board policies and administrative procedures can be hard to keep track of when you're busy working on strategic 
initiatives. With GAMUT Policy Plus, you no longer have to send out individual policy updates and hope everyone 
has the most recent version stored in their own files. Keep your board members, staff, and community updated and 
accountable with online access to the latest policies and administrative procedures and save the cost and confusion 


that comes with printing and delivering paper copies. 


Easily incorporate CSBA updates 


Manage your board policies, administrative regulations, procedures and exhibits all in one place 


Post draft policies fo r public review, or restrict access with perm issions for public and pr ivate access 


Select custom printing options to suit your needs 


IVlake m1sp1acea aocuments a thing or the past with \.JAIVIU I s uocuments sonware. LiAIVIU Is oniine 11orary prov1aes 
a central repository for all of your important board documents, with permissions to allow board members, staff, and 
the public access to exactly what they need while keeping sensitive data secure. 


Create folders to classify and manage your documents 


Upload virtually any file type, including Word, Excel, PowerPoint, PDF, or graphics 


Set Folder and file permissions for either public or private access 


GAMUT COMMUNICATIONS 


Communicate with your board and the public without having to rely on your technical team to update your website 


or worrying about lost emails. With Simbli's online portal, you can streamline communications with all stakehold
ers, creating separate channels for internal and public viewers, including customized news feeds and calendars 


- all searchable by date or keyword. 


Share updates, such as board or performance results, via public or private news feeds 


Create public or private calendars controlling visibility and admin istration rights via permissions 


Quickly access news items with a date or keyword search 


Automatically post meeting agenda links to your calendar of choice 


Schedule a demo today! For more information or to request a free demo, 


please call (916) 669-4686 or email gamut@csba.org. 





		Agenda Pg 1

		Agenda Pg 2

		6.0 YCCD Trustee Area 7 Douglas Harris

		7.0 Department Reports

		7.2 Administrative Services

		7.3 Student Services

		7.4 Technology Services



		10.1 20 June 23 Public Hearing Minutes - LCAP and Budget

		10.2 21 June 23 Regular Meeting Minutes

		10.3 12 July 23 Regular Meeting Minutes

		10.4 BOP 3013 Opting out of Compensation

		12.1 EC 1007 - 1017 CBOE Elec Jurisd Org & Procedure

		12.1 GC 54953 Teleconferencing

		12.1.1 BP 9100 Organization

		12.1.2 BP 9122 Ex Officio Secretary of the Board

		12.1.3 BP 9320 Meetings and Notices

		12.1.4 BP 9322 Agenda Meeting Materials

		12.2 CSBA Membership and Dues

		Page 1

		Page 2

		Page 3

		Page 4

		Page 5

		Page 6

		4zwbzd52.rvb.pdf

		Page 1



		1nxkez4p.ecv.pdf

		Page 1

		Page 2












